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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES

NEERREEAN

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
28th Floor

Emperor Group Centre

288 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Registrar (in Bermuda)

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Registrar (in Hong Kong)

Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

(will be relocated to Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong with effect from 11 July 2019)

Principal Bankers

Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
Chong Hing Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Key Dates
Annual Results Announcement
Final Dividend
— Last Time to Lodge Transfers

12 June 2019

14 August 2019
(before 4:30 p.m.)
— Book Close Dates 15 and 16 August 2019
— Record Date
— Payment Date

16 August 2019

6 September 2019
(HK$0.054 per shares)
8 August 2019

2 August 2019

(before 4:30 p.m.)

Annual General Meeting
— Last Time to Lodge Transfers

Corporate Communications

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company either in printed
form or on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company. In order to
protect the environment, the Company highly recommends the
shareholders to receive electronic copy of this Annual Report.
Shareholders may have the right to change their choice of
receipt of our future Corporation Communications at any time by
reasonable notice in writing to the Company or the Company’s
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, by
post or by email at is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
R

For the year ended 31 March B Z3A3MHILLEE

Revenue

1,381, 1,498,351
W A 381,335 98,35

Gross profit

CEEREY 958,923
E 7

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

- 367,492 393,574
ZNYNCIE? P DN X =Py w
Basic earnings per share HK$0.29 HK$0.30
SYIE ] B BT
Total dividends per share HK$0.082 HK$0.083
GRS B BT 77T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERNWR DN

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as (the “Group”) principally
engage in provision of entertainment and hospitality services in
Macau.

Market Review

With Macau government’s various initiatives to position itself as a
global leisure and tourism hub, Macau combines a wide spectrum
of leisure activities and entertainment that appeal to the evolving
demands of visitors from around the world. During the year ended
31 March 2019 (the “Year”), the number of Macau’s inbound
visitors rose 13.0% to 37.6 million.

Though there is positive growth in Macau tourism, the development
of Cotai casino resorts has started to mature and this, coupled with
the volatile global economic environment and intensifying control
of capital flows in mainland China, has resulted in slower growth
of Macau's gaming market. During the Year, Macau’s gross gaming
revenue increased by 8.5% to MOP302.5 billion, as compared with
double digit growth in the previous financial year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERN W RN

Financial Review

Overall Review

The change in Macau’s tourism landscape has somewhat
impacted the Group’s performance, and revenue declined by 7.8%
to HK$1,381.3 million (2018: HK$1,498.4 million) during the Year.
Profit for the Year attributable to the owners of the Company also
decreased by 6.6% to HK$367.5 million (2018: HK$393.6 million).
Basic earnings per share were HK$0.29 (2018: HK$0.30). The
board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or the “Directors”)
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.054
(2018: HK$0.057) per share. Together with the interim dividend
of HK$0.028 (2018: HK$0.026) per share, the total dividends per
share for the Year are HK$0.082 (2018: HK$0.083).

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources
The Group continued to maintain a strong cash position and a
healthy financial position, supported by its ongoing and stable
cash inflows. The Group funded its operations and capital
expenditure by cash generated internally from its operations. For
the commercial benefit of the Group, the Group invested in certain
high-yield listed corporate bonds with carrying value of HK$468.8
million as of 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$423.1 million). These listed
corporate bonds are denominated in United States dollar and
Renminbi with a maturity period from 1 to 3 years. As at 31 March
2019, aggregate of bank balances and cash, short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits of the Group amounted to
HK$2,982.8 million (2018: HK$3,574.4 million), which are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
Macau Patacas. During the Year, the Group recorded an exchange
loss of HK$10.9 million mainly attributable to devaluation of assets
denominated in Renminbi. The Group closely monitors its overall
foreign exchange exposure and will consider to adopt appropriate
measures to mitigate its currency risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERNWR DN

The Group’s current assets and current liabilities as at 31 March
2019 were HK$3,355.4 million (2018: HK$4,073.8 million) and
HK$561.8 million (2018: HK$881.7 million), respectively. As at
31 March 2019, the advances from non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary of the Company amounted to HK$46.2 million
(2018: HK$107.6 million), which was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, unsecured, interest-free and repayable at the discretion
of non-controlling interests and availability of surplus fund of
the subsidiary. The gearing ratio of the Group (expressed as a
percentage of total borrowings over total equity) decreased to
0.8% (2018: 1.8%).

During the Year, the Company repurchased its own shares from the
market using internal resources, with a total of 43,720,000 shares
purchased at an aggregate consideration of HK$72.6 million,
with an average price of HK$1.66 per share. Having considered
the Group’s cash reserves, the Directors believe the share
repurchases would enhance value to the Company’s shareholders
and benefit the Company and its shareholders as a whole. As at
the date of this annual report, these repurchased shares had been
cancelled and the total number of issued shares of the Company
was reduced to 1,258,825,983 (2018: 1,302,545,983) shares and
its issued share capital was HK$126,000 (2018: HK$130,000).

Subsequent to the end of the Year, the Company further

repurchased its own shares from the market, likewise from internal
resources, with a total of 7,845,000 shares purchased at an
aggregate consideration of HK$13.4 million, with an average price
of HK$1.70 per share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERNWR DN

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2019, assets with carrying values of approximately
HK$2.2 billion (2018: HK$2.3 billion) were pledged to several
banks as security for banking facilities, for a total of HK$520.0
million (2018: HK$100.0 million) granted to the Group. In addition,
the Group has bank deposits of HK$44.0 million (2018: HK$0.3
million) pledged to banks as security for i) obtaining a bank
guarantee in amount of MOP45.0 million (equivalent to HK$43.7
million) which is made in favour of Sociedade de Jogos de
Macau, S.A. (“SJM”) for the Group’s fulfilment of all its obligations,
in particular for reimbursement by the Group to SJM of the
employee’s salaries and benefits for those gaming operation
employees employed by SUM who work for the casino where the
Group provides services to SUM, as stipulated under the service
agreement entered into between SJM and the Group; and ii) the
use of ferry ticket equipment provided by a third party to the
Group.

Acquisitions

On 8 October 2018, the Group made an acquisition from a
substantial shareholder of Luck United, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, of its entire 15% equity interest in Luck
United and the relevant shareholder’s loan due to this shareholder
(“15% Acquisition”), at a total consideration of HK$460.0 million.
On 27 December 2018, the Group made a further acquisition
from another shareholder of Luck United of its entire 5% equity
interest in Luck United and the relevant shareholder’s loan due
to this shareholder (“5% Acquisition”), at a total consideration
of HK$155.0 million. As at 31 March 2019, both of the 15%
Acquisition and the 5% Acquisition were completed, and the
Group increased its shareholding in Luck United to 80%. In recent
years, Luck United continued to achieve a stable performance in
entertainment and hospitality services in Macau, and generated
a recurrent income stream for the Group. The increase in the
shareholding of Luck United can realise the expansion of this good
investment opportunity, and enable the Group to efficiently utilise
financial resources.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERN W RN

Business Review

The Group currently operates two hotels, Grand Emperor Hotel
("GEH") and Inn Hotel Macau (“IHM”), in Macau. GEH, the Group’s
flagship project, on the Macau Peninsula, is an award-winning
26-storey gaming hotel with a gross floor area of approximately
655,000 square feet and 311 guest rooms. It has six gaming floors,
covering over 130,000 square feet, and offers slot machines as
well as gaming tables in the gaming concourse and the VIP room.
In addition, GEH offers a wide range of amenities including fitness
centre, sauna and spa facilities, as well as five restaurants and
bars boasting fine cuisines from all around the world. With strong
commitment to providing guests with unparalleled entertainment
and hospitality experiences, the Group delivers consistently
top-quality services that translate into high levels of customer
satisfaction and loyalty.

Located at the heart of Macau’s Taipa Island, IHM is a 17-storey
hotel with a gross floor area of approximately 209,000 square
feet, and 287 guest rooms. IHM creates comfortable experience
for catering the lifestyles of both leisure and business travellers.
Through extending coverage from the Macau Peninsula to Taipa,
IHM enables the Group to fully capture the potential of Macau’s
hospitality market.

Gaming Revenue

The Group’s casino in GEH is operated under the gaming licence
held by SJM. Although the number of inbound visitors in Macau
grew during the Year, the market share of casinos on the Macau
Peninsula has been partially captured by the recently opened
casino resorts in Cotai. In order to expand its customer base and
enhance customer loyalty, the Group strengthened its efforts to
improve customer segmentation and customer services, aiming
to create a personalised and pleasant experiences for gamblers.
During the Year, the Group’s gaming revenue declined slightly, to
HK$1,136.8 million (2018: HK$1,253.4 million).

Gaming Concourse

The gross win in the gaming concourse was HK$1,187.0
million (2018: HK$1,293.1 million) and revenue from the
gaming concourse was HK$664.8 million (2018: HK$723.2
million), accounting for 481% (2018: 48.3%) of the Group’s
total revenue. There were 67 (2018: 67) tables in the gaming
concourse. Average win per table per day was HK$49,000 (2018:
HK$53,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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VIP Room

The Group self-managed a VIP room with 10 (2018: 10) tables.
The rolling amount was HK$19.3 billion (2018: HK$22.4 billion).
Revenue from the VIP room was HK$429.4 million (2018: HK$490.9
million), accounting for 31.1% (2018: 32.8%) of the Group’s total
revenue. Average win per table per day was HK$207,000 (2018:
HK$237,000).

Slot Machines

With a capacity of 180 (2018: 172) slot seats as at 31 March 2019,
the gross win from slot machines increased to HK$89.7 million
(2018: HK$82.7 million). Revenue from the slot machines increased
to HK$42.6 million (2018: HK$39.3 million), accounting for 3.1%
(2018: 2.6%) of the Group’s total revenue. Average win per seat
per day increased by 0.8% to HK$1,442 (2018: HK$1,431).

Hotel Revenue

The Group’s hotel revenue derives from the hospitality income of
GEH and IHM. The hotel revenue decreased slightly by 0.2% to
HK$244.5 million (2018: HK$245.0 million), accounting for 17.7%
(2018: 16.3%) of the Group’s total revenue. As of 31 March 2019,
GEH and IHM provided 311 and 287 guest rooms, respectively.
During the Year, the average room rates of GEH and IHM were
HK$888 (2018: HK$872) per night and HK$520 (2018: HK$476)
per night, with occupancy rates of 94% (2018: 93%) and 93%
(2018: 94%), respectively. Combined room revenue was HK$102.7
million (2018: HK$100.1 million). Combined revenue from food and
beverage was HK$113.3 million (2018: HK$112.7 million), while
the aggregate amount of rental income and other revenue was
HK$28.5 million (2018: HK$32.2 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBENWRON

Outlook

In the near future, the volatile global economy and political
tensions are likely to somewhat hinder the development of Macau’s
gaming market. Nonetheless, the Macau government is relentlessly
boosting its tourism, in order to turn Macau into a world-class
tourist city. Currently, approximately 70% of its tourists come from
mainland China, and the Group is poised to benefit from the
rising affluence in mainland China. The latest developments —
including the operation of Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge and
the promotion of the Greater Bay Area — are also set to boost
Macau tourism. The Group therefore remains optimistic about the
long term outlook for Macau's gaming market.

In view of the changing tourism landscape in Macau, the Group
will reinforce its customer segmentation, in order to expand its
share of the premium mass market, in which the Group sees
long-term potential. In this regard, the Group will increase its
competitiveness by offering differentiated, premium services to
the targeted segments. The Group endeavours to elevate itself in
order to solidify its market presence as opportunities emerge, and
is committed to contributing to the development of Macau into a
global gaming hub.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s number of employee was 1,143
(2018: 1,164). Total staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
were HK$451.7 million (2018: HK$441.8 million) for the Year. Each
employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibilities, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Staff benefits include
medical and life insurance, provident funds and other competitive
fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which are set out
in the section headed “Share Options” on pages 137 and 138.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEAEBZEBE

Non-executive Director (Chairperson)

LUK SIU MAN, SEMON, aged 63, the Chairperson of the
Company. She joined the Company in March 2000. Ms. Luk
is also the non-executive director and chairperson of Emperor
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163) (“Emperor
International”), which is an indirect holding company of the
Company. She worked in the banking industry for almost 10 years.
Ms. Luk graduated from The University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Commerce.

Executive Director

WONG CHI FAIl, aged 63, the Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wong joined the Company in 1991. He has been
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth
and development and overseeing the financial management of
the Group. Mr. Wong is the Chairman of the Executive Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is
currently a director of four listed companies in Hong Kong, namely
Emperor International, Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock
Code: 887) ("Emperor W&J"), Emperor Culture Group Limited
(Stock Code: 491) (“Emperor Culture”) and Ulferts International
Limited (Stock Code: 1711) (“Ulferts”), all being associated
corporations of the Company. Having over 30 years of finance and
management experience, Mr. Wong has diversified experience in
different businesses ranging from hotel and hospitality, property
investment and development, retailing of watch and jewellery,
cinema development and operation to entertainment production
and investment, manufacturing to wholesaling and retailing of
furniture, financial and securities services, artiste management
as well as media and publication. Mr. Wong is a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEAEBZEBE

Executive Director

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA (Former Name: Fan Man Seung),
aged 56, the Executive Director of the Company. Ms. Fan joined
the Company in 1991. She has been responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning, business growth and development as well as
overseeing different functions within the Group. She is also the
Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee, a member
of the Executive Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Fan is currently a director of four listed companies
in Hong Kong, namely Emperor International, Emperor W&J,
Emperor Culture and Ulferts. Having over 30 years of corporate
management experience, she possesses diversified experience in
different businesses ranging from hotel and hospitality, property
investment and development, retailing of watch and jewellery,
cinema development and operation to entertainment production
and investment, wholesaling and retailing of furniture, financial
and securities services, artiste management as well as media and
publication. She is a lawyer by profession in Hong Kong and a
qualified accountant, and holds a Master's Degree in Business
Administration.

Independent Non-executive Director

YU KING TIN, aged 52, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2013. He is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance Committee
of the Company. Mr. Yu has worked in various organizations
including international certified public accountants firms and
listed companies in Hong Kong. He is currently one of the senior
management in the finance department of a conglomerate in
Hong Kong. Mr. Yu graduated from the Peking University with
a Bachelor's Degree in Law and The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a Master's Degree in Corporate Finance. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a Certified Tax Advisor and a member of
the Society of Registered Financial Planner.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEAEBZEBE

Independent Non-executive Director

KWAN SHIN LUEN, SUSANNA, aged 52, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2015. She is the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well
as a member of the Audit Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Ms. Kwan is also the Independent
Non-executive Director of Hypebeast Limited, the shares of which
were previously listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8359) and the listing was transferred to
the Main Board in March 2019 (Stock Code: 150). Ms. Kwan has
a legal practice focusing on corporate/commercial and corporate
finance matters in Hong Kong for more than 20 years, including
mergers & acquisitions, regulatory compliance, public offerings,
private placement of securities and open offers, joint ventures and
securities related compliance. She practices and specialises as
a corporate finance and legal and compliance lawyer. Ms. Kwan
graduated from the London School of Economics (London).

Independent Non-executive Director

LAI KA FUNG, MAY, aged 53, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2016. She is
the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Ms. Lai is a Certified Public Accountant and has
been engaged in the audit field for more than 20 years. She is a
Principal Partner of May K.F. Lai & Co. & H.H. Liu & Co., Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Lai is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
997). She was previously an Independent Non-executive Director
of Emperor W&J until 24 May 2017. Ms. Lai is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and obtained
a Master’'s Degree of Arts in International Accounting from City
University of Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 69 of this annual report. The dividends paid during the Year
and proposed to be paid for the Year are set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK$0.028 per share for the Year (2018:
HK$0.026 per share), amounting to approximately HK$35,871,000
(2018: HK$33,866,000), was paid to the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.054 (2018: HK$0.057) per share for the Year, to those
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
on 16 August 2019 (Friday), subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 8 August 2019 (Thursday) (2019 AGM”).

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5
to 13. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 46 to 58 of this annual report and notes 31 and 32(b) to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Save as disclosed in Management Discussion and Analysis and
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, there is no
important event affecting the Company that had occurred since
the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, discussion on the key relationships with the
Company’s key stakeholders, the Group’s environmental policy
and performance as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2018/2019.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 159 of this annual
report.

Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2019, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties on an open market value basis. The increase in fair
value amounting to HK$17,600,000 has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Details of changes in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of investment properties of the Group as at 31 March
2019 is set out on page 160 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment
During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
at a cost of HK$75,305,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out on page 72 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 31 March 2019 represent the retained profits of
HK$269,003,000 (2018: HK$434,179,000).

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme adopted in 2013 as set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (Chairperson)

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chi Fai
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Yu King Tin

Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as
at the date of this report are set out from pages 14 to 16 of this
annual report. Details of Directors’ remunerations are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Mr. Yu King Tin and Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May shall retire
by rotation at the 2019 AGM and, being eligible, shall offer
themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2019 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.
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Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are provided
for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and officers
liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential
liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be
brought against the Directors and the directors of the Group.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link to
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current best practice). Remuneration should be paid
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, the
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Executive and Non-executive Directors,
internal equity of employment conditions across the Group and
applicability of performance-based remuneration. The Directors’
fees are paid in line with market practice. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’'s responsibilities, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salary, Directors’
fees, housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to the financial performance of the
Group and individual performance, ad hoc rewards, share options
and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical and life
insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in

Securities

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors adopted
by the Company (“EEH Securities Code”) were as follows:

(A) Ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”)

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interests
E=nA B EatE
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse
(*Ms. Semon Luk”) i 1B fE &
&+
(EEZE])
Note:

These Shares were held by Emperor Entertainment Hotel Holdings
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor International.
Emperor International is a company with its shares listed in Hong
Kong and as at 31 March 2019, approximately 74.71% of its issued
shares was held by Emperor International Group Holdings Limited
(“Emperor International Group Holdings”). The entire issued share of
Emperor International Group Holdings is wholly owned by Albert Yeung
Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”) which is held by STC International
Limited (“STC International”), being the trustee of The Albert Yeung
Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”), a discretionary trust set up by Dr.
Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”) who is deemed to have
interests in the said shares of the Company. By virtue of being the
spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk also had deemed interests
in the same Shares.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited H2R45HEEFR AT

EERTETBRAEZESER

HR2019F3A31H  EFERARREETH
ABRARARRERBZE(TEERBFR
HEGH((EHRBEGKRL ) EXVE) 2 &
D HEROEREEEFEFARARE
BER B EIEHFEI5205EF 2 B MR
EERAR  IBEBEARBRMNZE
BEETEFRIMBZETA((HEREHE
EREFTFADAESITME ARG RE BB
ERGBERAR ([BRA) 2R AR
e

(A) X2 zEBRIKRMS)

Number of % of issued
Shares interested Shares
EREEEZ e BT
i &8 BHAEDE
851,352,845 67.63%

# it

ZERMAREER 2 HAZ2EHB AR
RERGEHEEZRERAFFE RERH
B —MElkHh R EE BTz AE B R2019
FIA31IB  N74AT1% 2 EEHTTRHARE
EE(BEB)ERER AR (%25 EEpRE
BDHEF HRELEBRBERZE2HEE
TROBEEZRET((HEELD(EEE A
BAEARNRAR LR GOER) KL 2 2EERT
The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust ([AY
Trust]) 2 % 5E ASTC International Limited
([STC Internationall) # 5 2 155 K E ¥ &
BERAR((BSIRELER)Z2EHH -
ERNEZETAGIBLZREB  BIANERAE
BZERNHER -

Annual Report 2018/2019 F i




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in EERFTETHRABZRSER(Z)
Securities (continued)
(B) Interests in Associated Corporations of the (B) RELNTBEH EIE 2=
Company
Ordinary Shares ZEKR
Number of % of issued
Number of Capacity/Nature  shares interested shares
Name of Director associated corporation of interests s i HERT
Espgg HBEEAR B/ BntE ZRGEE BROBED L
Ms. Semon Luk Emperor International Interest of spouse 2,747,610,489 74.71%
Bzt REHRE L g (Note)
(Hf7t)
Ms. Semon Luk Emperor W&J Interest of spouse 4,290,850,000 63.29%
B+ HEEHRKE L g (Note)
(Ht7t)
Ms. Semon Luk Ulferts Interest of spouse 600,000,000 75.00%
B+ Bt L g (Note)
(Hf7t)
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa  Emperor International Beneficial owner 10,500,000 0.29%
BHRERL % 2 F % EmBEAA
Mr. Yu King Tin Emperor W&J Beneficial owner 80,000 0.001%
REXEHE HEERKE ERBEAA
Note: B i -
Emperor International, Emperor W&J and Ulferts are companies with HEFR  REFERRERBIECHARKRHOR
their shares listed on the Stock Exchange. These respective shares were BT EmZ AR o EBFERMIIBAY Trust
ultimately owned by the AY Trust whose founder is Dr. Albert Yeung. SRR BB L BAY TrustZ BlS7 A - 2
By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk also REZTAGETZES  BIAKEARE
had deemed interests in the same shares. PR MR o
All interests stated above represent long positions. EXFE IR EITFE -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the [ FXFrigEEIN - R2019FE3A31H © 1
Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests or #EZEFsk A Al 2 FTE1TH A BERARQA]
short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and debentures sk EF [ HESEE (T & BB 5B EE
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the  ZEXVEB) ZF @& - HER D &R F+
meaning of Part XV of the SFO). AT EERK AR

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 22448 5EHR A 7]
Annual Report 2018/2019 F 3§




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Share Options

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 15 August
2013 (“Share Option Scheme”). Particulars of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements. No share options were granted under the Share Option

Scheme since its adoption.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at no time
during the Year was the Company, any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or
their spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’

Interests

So far as is known to any Director or chief executives of the Company,
as at 31 March 2019, the following persons or corporations (other
than a Director or a chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have an interest and short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO (“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified

to the Company were as follows:

Bk

AR R HR2013F8 A 15 H B £ 4% i ik 7 5+ &l
(IERESTE]D  BRESE 2FBIR
AR FE28 - B R ES S
&% BMEBREREBREFERL -

BEROSEEFEZRH
B £ SCATHL SN + ARG K RS 4 E

R - AAF - BEAERAR - WER
7] 8% [F) 2 B 2 R A AT ST & - B
FEEXARBETETBRABXBEZ MR
B R W18 T LA HEBAKRRA KM
it 5% 1 0 R 1) o 6 48 % 1 2 R 25

FTERREREMAL ZES

MR2019F3A31H » MIEMEFHALQF £
ETBABA BRESFSIARAETET
BABIN  TH AL EBERR D AEH
BOFHEESIESRAIEEFERELER
BREBEASNLBHEGNEICKREFTE ZE
Ef((EREEMKBESITNEERAF
ZHEZRABIT:

Number of % of
Name Capacity/Nature of interests Shares interested issued Shares
‘| R B EaME FisgEazROHE KERTROBIHL
Emperor International Interest in a controlled corporation 851,352,845 67.63%
"EERKR RIEGEE R 2 # &=
AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation 851,352,845 67.63%
15X K E R TR RREFEE R 2 ¥ 5=
STC International Trustee of the AY Trust 851,352,845 67.63%

AY TrustZ X3t A

Dr. Albert Yeung Founder of the AY Trust 851,352,845 67.63%

st AY TrustZ &)32 A

Note:

These Shares were the same Shares as those set out under Section (A) of
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above in which Ms.

Semon Luk had deemed interests.

Hrat

ZEBRME EXEERERITRABZE S Em]
(A~ BB RNER BEXtHERRETHES
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’

Interests (continued)
All interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Directors were
not aware of any person or corporation (other than the Directors
and chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the DI Register of the Company
or as otherwise notified to the Company.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates was interested in any business which was considered to
compete or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”).

Confirmation of Independence of Independent

Non-executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company (“INEDs”), an annual
confirmation of the independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the INEDs are
independent.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s

Listed Securities

During the Year, the Company repurchased a total of 43,720,000
Shares at an aggregate consideration of HK$72,377,000 (before
expenses) on the Stock Exchange.

Particulars of the Shares repurchase during the Year are as follows:

BOo - HEIBEQAQAT LTRSS
RAFE RARRBXMAER-LSH®
43,720,000 i 15 + 41 B 572,377,0007%
TORFFX) -

RAFEARMEEBZFBOT:

Aggregate
Number Highest Lowest consideration
Date of cancellation  of Shares price paid price paid  Ppaid (before
Month of Shares & HHH repurchased per Share per Share expenses)
repurchase (DD/MM/YYYY) B8 [ B% 17 e ER [EREEST AR E
BE RS2z AG (B R/ %) Z &8 BEE BIKE (ReHBAX)
HK$ HK$ HK$
& TT & T T

2018
April 4H 08/05/2018 1,935,000 1.74 1.65 3,345,800
June 6 A 07/08/2018 4,855,000 1.72 1.68 8,256,400
July 78 07/08/2018 3,465,000 1.71 1.65 5,838,250
August 8 H 07/08/2018 & 7,340,000 1.72 1.59 11,802,650

27/09/2018
November 11H 12/12/2018 850,000 1.44 1.42 1,217,000
December 12 A 12/12/2018 & 3,530,000 1.51 1.43 5,248,900
29/03/2019

2019
January 1H 29/03/2019 9,840,000 1.68 1.44 15,893,550
February 2H 29/03/2019 7,340,000 1.78 1.67 12,655,650
March 3H 29/03/2019 4,565,000 1.79 1.75 8,118,800
Total #& 5t 43,720,000 72,377,000

The repurchases were made with a view to enhancing the net
asset value and/or earnings per Share.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

As at 31 March 2019, there was a total of 1,258,825,983 (2018:
1,302,545,983) Shares in issue.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements, Contracts of Significance and

Connected Transactions
During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the

Company:

A. Connected Transaction — Sale and Purchase
Agreement Regarding the Acquisition of 15%
of the Equity Interest in Luck United Holdings
Limited (“Luck United”)

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

Completion:

Announcement:

8 October 2018

(1) Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Investment Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

(2) Big Wheel Limited (“Big Wheel”),
a substantial shareholder of a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company

The acquisition of (i) the 1,500 shares
of US$1.00 each in the share capital
of Luck United, an indirect non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company,
representing 15% of the entire issued
share capital of Luck United and (ii) all
loan due and payable by Luck United
to Big Wheel as at completion, at a
consideration of HK$460,000,000. Big
Wheel is a substantial shareholder of
Luck United. As such, under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, Big Wheel was
a connected person at the subsidiary
level of the Company and accordingly,
the transaction constituted a connected
transaction for the Company. Ms.
Semon Luk had deemed interest in
the transaction by virtue of being an
associate of the eligible beneficiaries of
the AY Trust.

19 October 2018. The shareholding of
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Investment
Limited in Luck United was increased to
75% and Luck United would remain to
be a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

8 October 2018
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements, Contracts of Significance and
Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing Connected Transaction — Master
Leasing Agreement (“MLA”)

B.

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

24 May 2018
(1) The Company
(2) Emperor W&J

MLA sets out the framework of the
terms governing all existing and
future tenancy/licensing transaction(s)
(“Tenancy Transactions”) regarding
leasing of certain office properties
(including retail shops) to Emperor W&J
for the period from 24 May 2018 to 31
March 2021 with aggregate tenancy
annual caps being set for each of the
financial years ended/ending 31 March
2019, 2020 and 2021 (“Aggregate
Tenancy Annual Caps’).

Pursuant to the MLA, relevant members
of the Group and any member(s) of
Emperor W&J (as the case may be)
may from time to time enter into any
definitive leasing agreements in relation
to any Tenancy Transactions (“Definitive
Leasing Agreement(s)’). The terms of
each of Definitive Leasing Agreements
shall be on normal commercial terms
or on terms which are no less favorable
available to the Group than terms
offered by independent third parties.
The terms and rental shall be subject
to arm’s length negotiation and be
determined based on the condition
of the properties and with reference
to the then prevailing market rents on
property(ies) comparable in location,
area and permitted use.

During the Year, the aggregate amounts
of the Tenancy Transactions with
Emperor W&J or its relevant members
was HK$4,141,000.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements, Contracts of Significance and

Connected Transactions (continued)

B. Continuing Connected Transaction — Master
Leasing Agreement (“MLA”) (continued)

The Company and Emperor W&J were
all indirectly controlled by the AY
Trust. As such, under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, Emperor W&J was
a connected person of the Company
and accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the MLA constituted
continuing connected transaction of the
Company. Ms. Semon Luk had deemed
interest in the MLA by virtue of being an
associate of the eligible beneficiaries of
the AY Trust.

Completion: 2 August 2018, whereupon the
Aggregate Tenancy Annual Caps had
replaced all the then annual caps
previously obtained by the Company for
the Tenancy Transactions.

Announcement: 24 May 2018

C. Continuing Connected Transaction — Service
Agreement in Relation to the Operation of GEH

Date: 19 February 2010

Parties: (1)  Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company

(2) SJM, a company incorporated in
Macau, which is principally engaged
in gaming business in Macau and is
one of the six concessionaires/sub-
concessionaries licensed to carry
on casino operations in Macau. SJIM
has 19.99% equity interest in Luck
United
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements, Contracts of Significance and

Connected Transactions (continued)

C. Continuing Connected Transaction — Service
Agreement in Relation to the Operation of GEH

(continued)

Term:

Nature:

From 1 October 2009 to termination
upon occurrence of certain events,
including the expiration of SJM’s
gambling license under the Gaming
Concession Contract on 31 March 2020
or any earlier termination thereof or
winding up or cessation of business of
either party.

The provision of services comprising
management services and promotion
services by Tin Hou to SJM in relation
to the operation of GEH whereas Tin
Hou together with the nominated junket
promoter (a fellow subsidiary of Tin Hou
and wholly-owned by the Company)
shall be entitled to a share of the
gross win and gross loss in respect
of the monthly operating performance
of the gaming area of GEH and bear
all necessary operational expenses in
relation to the operation of the gaming
area.

During the Year, the Group’s net receipt
amount under the agreement amounted
to HK$969,004,000.
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Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Save as “Rental income from a related company” (under the
MLA) in the amount of HK$4,141,000 for the Year as shown in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, all other transactions as shown in this
note are connected transactions exempted from announcement,
reporting, annual review and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
the above non-exempt connected transactions.

Auditor’s Letter on Non-exempt Continuing

Connected Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
non-exempt continuing connected transactions (“CCT”")
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
(“Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The auditor had issued an unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the CCTs in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s Letter had
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Confirmation of Independent Non-executive

Directors

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs had
reviewed the CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter and have confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(i) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract which was significant in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or
at any time during the Year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers represented 86.2% (2018: 87.1%)
of the Group’s total revenue. The largest customer accounted
for 82.5% (2018: 83.8%) of the Group’s total revenue and is the
operator of VIP room, mass market hall and slot machine hall who
paid fee for the services rendered by the Group during the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented less than 30% of total purchases and services
received by the Group during the Year.

At no time during the Year a Director, an associates of a Director
or a Shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued Share, had any beneficial
interest in the share capital of any of the above major customers
and suppliers of the Group.
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Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 33 to 61.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor
A resolution will be submitted to the 2019 AGM to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Luk Siu Man, Semon
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 12 June 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERERE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“‘Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards the
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of the
Company.

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure compliance with
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. For the Year, the
Company had fully complied with all the code provisions of the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Board

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2019, the Board comprised six Directors, with
one Non-executive Director who is also the Chairperson of the
Company, two Executive Directors and three INEDs. The Board
considers that this composition ensures a strong independent
element with a balance of power and influence between individuals
on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement. The biographies of the Directors are set out from
pages 14 to 16 of this annual report under the “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive

Ms. Semon Luk has been appointed as the Chairperson since
2000 and provides leadership for the Board. With the support of
the company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”),
she ensures that all directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information and are properly briefed on issues arising at the board
meeting. She is responsible for ensuring that the board works
effectively and performs its responsibilities. She holds meetings
with the INEDs without the presence of Executive Directors at least
once a year.

Both Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa are
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth
and development.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with valuable experience and
expertise in legal and compliance, accounting or auditing fields
who contribute impartial view and make independent judgment
on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. Each of them has
been appointed for an initial term of one year and shall continue
thereafter on a yearly basis subject to early termination with written
notice being served by either party. The terms of the INEDs are
also subject to retirement by rotation and re-election provision
under the Bye-Laws of the Company.
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ERER®E

The Board (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

The Company had received a confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review conducted by the
Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly identified as such
in all corporate communications of the Company that disclose the
names of Directors.

Roles and Responsibilities of The Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for the
leadership, control and promotion of the success of the Group in
the interests of the Shareholders by directing and supervising its
affairs and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the
financial and management performance of the Group.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of the
Board) and has delegated powers and authorities to carry out the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group, formulate
business policies and make decision on key business issues. The
Executive Committee shall have all powers and authority of the
Board except the following matters as set out in a “formal schedule
of matters specifically reserved by the Board”:

o determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;
o approving annual and interim results and financial reporting;

° declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other
distribution;

° approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

o approving publication of the announcements for notifiable
transactions under the Listing Rules;

o approving non-exempted connected transactions/non-
exempted continuing connected transactions (other than
those transactions took place form time to time under the
master agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/
Shareholders (as the case may be) under the Listing Rules;

o approving proposed transactions requiring Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules;
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The Board (continued)

Delegation to the Management (continued)
o approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company;

o approving the establishment of Board committees;

° approving policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, including but not limited to
risk management policy, remuneration policy and corporate
governance policy;

o approving financial assistance to Directors;

o ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions; and

o approving such other matters or transactions as specified by
the Board or as thought fit by the Committee or as required
by all applicable laws, rules and regulations from time to
time.

Induction, Support and Professional Development of

Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty
of disclosure of equity/business interest of the Group and such
induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors. All Directors
have been updated on the latest developments regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed by
the Board to ensure Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses in order to assist them to perform their
duties to the Company.
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The Board (continued)
Induction, Support and Professional Development of

Directors (continued)

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
provision A.6.5 on Directors’ training. During the Year, each
Director had participated in continuous professional development
by attending seminars/workshops/reading materials on the
following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided a record of training to the Company.

Name of Directors
EEng

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon
[z =g

Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
BEER L

Mr. Yu King Tin
REXELE

Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna
BEE LT

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May
RKREZLT

Relationship Between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relations)
among each other.

Directors’ Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 22448 5EHR A 7]
Annual Report 2018/2019 F 3§

Exg(E)
EECRE ZEREXBR(A)

EEHR REEETEEERTAMEX
FA6SGBRESEI 2T - RAFE -
REZPC2ERKEEXER  BRLE
BT IR ERE T BEM
B RBERRENREZNH# L ZE I
B R AR R ol 42 8%

Topics on training covered

FRRE 2 A £ RE

(1) corporate governance
TEEER

(2) finance

B 75

(3) industry specific
BEXEE

(4) regulatory

EZERERCHEE
ExgXBCHAMEXTMNEREERE
X% XBIHEMBEXR HBEBR -

EEoRE
ARPEREF A S E Y 2MEREREF
MIEREE ZRREH °




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

The Board (continued)

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment
The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is set

out below:

EEg(#)
EECHERRREBERA
AFEEFHRE PSR ZERMT

No. of meeting attended/held

LEeE ETeERY
Corporate Chairperson
Governance with INEDs
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Committee Executive  General FEHBY
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee &% EJ  Committee  meeting FHTEZ
EEps Exg® ERZEBE FHZEEE REZEE® ZEE® HfTZEE REAE 283
Non-executive Director and Chairperson
FUTESREIR
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon 8/8 NATER NATER NATER NATER NATEA 11 11
Ehgxt
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Note 1) 8/8 N/A T8 B 11 NATER NATER 11/11 11 N/A 1 i& A
BEEBEEN )
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 2) 8/8 NATER NATEAR 2/2 11 111 11 N/A &
BRERT(WH2)
Independent Non-executive Directors
BIFHTES
Mr. Yu King Tin (Note 3) 8/8 3/3 il N/A 1 i@ F il N/A 4 i F il 1N
REREEN23)
Ms Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna (Note 4) 8/8 3/3 N/A T~ER 2/2 il N/A i B il i
BEELL W)
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May (Note 5) 8/8 3/3 11 2/2 NATER  NATER 11 il
RRE &+ (#1525
Total number of meetings held 8 3 1 2 1 1 1 1
;E%TT = u&Z%@%ﬁ(
Notes: M it -
1. Chairman of Executive Committee 1. BITZEEER
2. Chairperson of Corporate Governance Committee 2. BRERZERE
3. Chairman of Audit Committee 3. #HERZBEEIR
4. Chairperson of Nomination Committee 4. REZBEER
5. Chairperson of Remuneration Committee 3. FHEEEER

Upon reviewing (a) the annual confirmation of time commitment
the directorships and major
commitments of each Director; and (c) the attendance rate of each
Director on full Board and his/her respective Board committee
meetings as well as general meeting, the Board is satisfied
that all Directors have spent sufficient time in performing their

given by each Director;

responsibilities during the Year.
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The Board (continued)

Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
intervals. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures as well
as all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the meeting in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent to the
Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board meeting.
For all other board meetings, reasonable notice was given. Board
papers and relevant materials which provide appropriate, accurate,
clear complete and reliable information are generally sent to all
Directors and relevant committee members at least 3 days before
each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded in sufficient
details the matters considered and decisions reached, with
draft and final versions being circulated to the Directors for their
comment and records respectively, within reasonable time after
the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes, being kept by
the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting on
the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/her
associates have a material interest and he/she shall not be counted
in the quorum present at the Board meeting. INEDs, who, and
whose close associates, have no material interest in the transaction
are present at that Board meeting.
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The Board (continued)

Board Committees
To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate effective
management, certain functions of the Board have been delegated
by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee and the majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out below:

1. Executive Committee (set up on 25 November 2014)
The Executive Committee consists of all Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Chairman of the Committee)
and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa. The primary duties
of the Executive Committee are (1) formulating business
policies and making decision (including entering into
transactions) on matters relating to the management and
day-to-day operations of the Company; (2) making and
reviewing corporate/financial/treasury planning, investment
and operation strategy of the Group; (3) discussing and
approving any financial, borrowing, charging and guarantee
commitment to be made or on behalf of the Group; (4)
approving discloseable transactions, exempted connected
transactions and non-exempted connected transactions
took place from time to time under the master agreement(s)
previously approved by the Board/Shareholders (as the case
may be) under the Listing Rules; and (5) having all power
and authorities of the Board except those matters specifically
reserved for the full Board as set out in the “Formal Schedule
on matters reserved for and delegated by the Board”
adopted by the Board from time to time.
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The Board (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

2. Audit Committee (set up on 15 September 2004)
The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Yu
King Tin (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Kwan Shin Luen,
Susanna and Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (1) making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the external auditor; (2) reviewing and monitoring the external
auditor’'s independence and objectivity and effectiveness of
the audit process; (3) approving the remuneration and terms
of engagement of external auditor; and (4) reviewing financial
information and overseeing the financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee held three meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting policies and practices
adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of the
annual financial statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2018 (“Previous Year”) and the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2018;

ii. reviewed with senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group during the
Previous Year;

iii.  annual review of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the Previous Year;

iv. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the 2018 annual general meeting
(“2018 AGM");

V. approved the audit plan for the Year, reviewed the
independence of the external auditor and approved its
engagement; and

vi. made recommendation to the Board on the adoption of
the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
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The Board (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

3. Remuneration Committee (set up on 11 July 2005)
The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Yu King Tin, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi
Fai, being an Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration Committee
is primarily responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on (1) the Company’s policy and structure of
all remuneration of Directors and senior management; (2)
the remuneration packages of non-executive directors;
and (3) the specific remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation
to the Board; and

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package of
the Executive Directors and senior management and
made recommendation to the Board to approve their
specific packages.
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The Board (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

4.

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)
The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna (Chairperson of the
Committee) and Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May, both being INEDs,
and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa, being an Executive
Director.

4.

B EZEE (R201243H28H F i)
RELZEEH-"BKEAK  ED5l
BB NI EFE %ﬁi@?éj
ELXE)ERIBELLMATESES
Be L o

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination REEE BEREMBEHEARN
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ&$ AL ER - REBESB

Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are (1) reviewing the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board; (2) reviewing
the Board Diversity Policy; (3) reviewing the policy for

EZEKH&,J%(H HEFEMR
BoAB -EHAEKEZTE: QR
NEFEZTEBR: ()MuT§$Tm
%ZE&”(H&%E&%D&%@ EE

the nomination of Directors (“Nomination Policy”) and EREAN QT ZBELERNTEESHD
identifying potential candidates for directorship; (4) B O)VRNSESAEANRR

assessing the independence of INEDs; (5) reviewing
the time commitment of each Director; and (6) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment, re-election or re-designation of Directors
and succession planning for Directors. The Nomination
Committee held two meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board,

ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

iii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors;

V. made recommendation the Board on the re-election of
Directors at the 2018 AGM; and

V. made recommendation to the Board on the adoption
of the Nomination Policy and the revised terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee.
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The Board (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

4.

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

(continued)

Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company.
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skill,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee
will also assess the merits and contribution of any Director
proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated to be
appointed as Director that will bring to the Board against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board that would complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

Nomination Policy

During the Year, the Company had adopted the Nomination
Policy of the Group. It aims at assisting the Nomination
Committee in identifying and nominating suitable candidates
for directorship based on the Board Diversity Policy and
sets out the nomination criteria, the nomination procedures
for (i) nominating additional Director to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board; (ii) making recommendation to Shareholders
regarding election or re-election of Director at general
meeting; and (iii) nomination by Shareholders on election of
new Director.
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The Board (continued) BEEg(8)

Board Committees (continued) ExZzEg(£)
5. Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 5. EXEERZEE(R2012F3528H
March 2012) )

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CGC”) consists
of five members, namely Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
(Chairperson of the Committee), being an Executive Director,
Mr. Yu King Tin and Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna, both
being INEDs, a representative from company secretarial
function and a representative from finance and accounts
function. The specific written terms of reference of the CGC
is available on the Company’s website. The primary duties
of the CGC are (1) reviewing the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Company and making
recommendations to the Board; (2) reviewing and monitoring
the policies and practices of the Company on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements of the Company; (3)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to Directors and relevant employees of the Group
on dealings with the Company’s securities; (4) reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and (5)
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report. The CGC held one meeting during
the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the CGC during the
Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and made
recommendation to the Board:;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv.  reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group;

V. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report; and

vi. made recommendation to the Board on the adoption of
the revised terms of reference of the CGC.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by
the Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board for
ensuring good information flow within the Board and ensuring that
the Board policy and procedures are followed. She reports to the
Chairperson of the CGC on governance matters and has day-to-
day knowledge of the Group’s affairs.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had duly complied with
the relevant training requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

Securities Transaction of Directors

The Company has adopted EEH Securities Code on no less
exacting terms than the required standards set out in the Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules regarding Model Code for Securities
Transactions of Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry to Directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings in the Model
Code and EEH Securities Code throughout the Year.

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules. The
management has provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates on internal consolidated financial statements which give
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects as at the reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the
Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgment and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable and ensured the consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a “going concern” basis (with supporting assumptions
or qualifications as necessary) and showed a true view of the
state of affairs of the Group for the Year. The management had
provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board on
the consolidated financial statements to enable it to make an
information put before it for approval. The auditor of the Company
has made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor's Report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and
day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company
in achieving its business objectives. Internal control policies
and procedures within the Group are updated regularly with
the primary objective of providing general guidance and
recommendations on a basic framework of risk management and
internal control systems (“Systems”).

A review has been conducted on (i) the internal control
measures and procedures covering all material controls, including
operational, financial and compliance controls; and (ii) the risk
management functions in its principal subsidiaries for the Year as
follows:

A. Goals and Objectives
The Board acknowledged its responsibility to ensure that the
Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
Systems. Such Systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The key objectives of the Systems include:
o safeguarding assets;

o ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of
financial records and reports;

o promoting adherence
regulations and laws; and

to policies, procedures,

o promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued) EBREERAIBEE(Z)

B. Internal Control B. RIPEZEH
(1) Governance Control (1) EREZ

The control structure of the Systems is set out as ZERBEERBRINAT

follows:

The Board EFg

e  responsible for the Systems and reviewing their BEZSEABUEHAES
effectiveness; gk

e oversee the Systems on an ongoing basis with the EEZZESHTHE
assistance of the Audit Committee; EBEZERR:

o ensure maintenance of appropriate and effective
Systems;

° define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

o determine the nature and extent of significant risk
that the Company is willing to take in achieving
the strategic objectives and formulate the Group’s
risk management strategies.

Audit Committee

° review and discuss the Systems with the
management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have
effective Systems. This discussion includes the
adequacy of resources, staff qualification and
experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function; and

o consider major findings on internal control matters
(if any) raised by external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
B.

Internal Control (continued)

(1) Governance Control (continued)
The management (includes heads of business units,
departments and divisions)

° design, implement and monitor the Systems
properly and ensure the Systems are executed
effectively;

° monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks
in their day-to-day operations;

o give prompt response to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

o provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Systems.

Internal Audit Department

° carry out the analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Systems
in respect of all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance aspects;

° alert the management on the audit review
findings or irregularities and advise them on the
implementation of necessary steps and actions to
enhance the internal controls of the Group; and

o report results of internal audit reviews and agreed
action plans to the Audit Committee and the Board
on regular basis.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
B. Internal Control (continued)

(2) Operational Control
During the Year, the management had analysed the
control environment, identified risks pertaining thereto,
and implemented various controls therein as follows:

i. Approach taken: The management interviews
relevant staff members, reviews relevant
documentation of the Systems and evaluates
findings of any deficiencies in the design of the
Group’s internal control system, then provides
recommendations for improvement and assesses
the effectiveness of implementation of such
recommendations, where appropriate. The scope
and findings of review on the Systems will be
reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee
annually.

il Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard the
assets against unauthorised use or disposition
and ensuring maintenance of proper accounting
records that are in compliance with the applicable
laws, rules and regulations for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use and/
or external publication.

i. Management information system and
technology: To control over the business
activities, it allows close tracking of various inputs
and outputs of the Group’s business such as
inventory, products and customer relationship
and human resources. It also tracks audit
trails in the authorisation system, under which
permissions and responsibility of authorisation are
clearly identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the systems.

iv. Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each segment are conducted on
regular basis.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
B. Internal Control (continued)
(2) Operational Control (continued)

V.

Vi

Vii.

Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts the management promptly of any
deviations. Benchmarking with historical database
and comparisons with the same also acts as a
detecting device for spotting unusual activities.

Safeguarding of assets: Surprise physical
count of cash, chips and client deposits held in
casino and coupons for casino are performed
by Income Audit Team of GEH and reviewed
by Internal Audit Department. To safeguard the
assets, CCTV and security systems are installed
in each money and chips exchange counter and
casino exit which are monitored by Security and
Surveillance Department. Insurance coverage on
the hotel properties is periodically reviewed by
the management for sufficiency, and to ensure
compliance with the terms and conditions of the
insurance policies.

Service quality control: Regular review on
operational systems of hotel and gaming business
segments to ensure the service quality, and
questionnaires are provided in different outlets to
welcome customers’ feedbacks for our service
improvement.

3) Flnanclal Control

proper controls are in place for the recording of
complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

annual budget of hotel and gaming operations
is prepared and approved by the management
before being adopted,;
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
B. Internal Control (continued)
(3) Financial Control (continued)

Vi

Vii.

the management monitors the business activities
closely and reviews monthly financial results of
hotel and gaming operations against the budget;

regular reports on revenue, marker receivables’
ageing and debtors’ ageing and internal financial
reports are prepared to the management which
give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s financial performance;

monthly updates on internal financial statements
are provided to all directors and senior
management which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, financial position and prospects in
sufficient detalils;

annual audit by external auditor is carried out to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements
are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group’s
accounting policies and the applicable laws and
regulations; and

daily available fund report is reviewed to monitor
the cash flows of the Group.
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B EE R AP E(E)
B. WEZEH(E)
(4) BEHERE
A AT B8 AR B LMRFE S 3

B

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
B. Internal Control (continued)

(4) Compliance Control
The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure of
Inside Information to ensure, with the assistance
of an internal work team (if required), that
any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any one or more officers should
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated,
where appropriate, for the attention of the Board.
The Board shall make timely decisions on

HEARHEHERBEHER
BF AEARILIENE
(W& E) % B T FE AR AE ]
—HBEAZERBABBE
MEMRERERATLE
ahll ~ BHE KRR (HE M)
EEFE EFEARK
BEHERRE(WHFE) -

disclosure, if necessary, and take appropriate I £ BUE & TR b S A ROB
measures to preserve confidentiality of inside BERE BHEEZEIEMA
information until proper dissemination of the inside HEHEHB AL

information;

i. Policies and practices on compliance with i. FRETEEREERETE
legal and regulatory requirements which shall ZHRXEERSHESE
be reviewed and monitored regularly by the ZRZTLEEREZE®TE
Corporate Governance Committee as delegated Himat REE:

by the Board;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions
of the Company and ensure proper compliance
with all relevant laws and regulations, the Listing
Rules and disclosure requirements; and

Whistle-blowing policy for the employees of
the Group to raise concerns, in confidence,

BRERFEBEXSERE
EQM%%~%ﬁ £ H
R ARBZBERXH R
FEREXS UHEZ
REBS —UHRBAREX
o BT R RIIA Ko R AR
TR

RUBHEBRAZLAEHE
BREEWMEZ BN T Y

about possible improprieties in financial M NEEEESAMmE
reporting, internal control or other matters. BEFHAETETARD

Such arrangement will be reviewed by the
Audit Committee which ensures that proper
arrangement is in place for fair and independent
investigation of the matters.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
C. Risk Management

(M)

Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks are
evaluated by the Board and management based on (i)
the severity of the impact of the risks on the Group’s
financial results; (i) the probability that the risks will
occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which risks
could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage
the risk as follows:

° Risk elimination — the management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

° Risk mitigation — the management may implement
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to an
acceptable level or contingency plan for possible
loss scenarios.

° Risk control and monitoring — it involves
making decisions regarding which risks are
acceptable and how to address those that are
not; accidents and other situations involving loss
or near-loss will be investigated and properly
documented as part of the effort to manage risks.

° Risk retention — the management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required and the
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the
risk management program to ensure the level of
risk does not increase to an unacceptable level.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
C. Risk Management (continued)

(2) Significant Risks and Strategies
Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment.
Such significant risks of the Group together with their
respective key strategies/control measures are set out
below:

a

Changes in economic and political conditions:

Changes and volatility

in general economic

conditions, and stringent policies implemented by
PRC Central Government and Macau Government
impacting hospitality and travel related activities in
Macau. Any more adverse change in one of the
above situations would have significant impact to
the Group’s business.

Stay alert to changes in economic and
market conditions in mainland China or
global economy and adjust business
strategic plans to cope with these changes.

Explore opportunities to expand business or
market and broaden the Group’s customer
base.

While keeping high-quality hospitality
services, endeavor to control the expenses
and manpower or reallocate resources in an
efficient manner.

Attend more roadshows which are held

BEiEEERABEEGE
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2) FEmEBEREK
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
C. Risk Management (continued)

(2) Significant Risks and Strategies (continued)
b)  Keen competition in hotel and gaming industry:

Increased competition

in hotel and gaming

industry in Macau due to opening of more luxury
hotels by competitors as well as increasing in
numbers of VIP rooms, gaming tables and slot
machines from existing casinos and among other
Asian countries. No assurance that the growth

of Macau’s tourism

in line with or outpace the supply of hotel

industry would increase

accommodation, casino gaming tables and slot
machines and this could adversely affect the
Group’s business.

Enlarge and expand the footprint of the
Group in sourcing hotel patrons.

Devote to provide the best personalised
service to the guests in order to give
them a memorable experience; thereby
differentiating GEH from other hotels and
enabling them to make GEH be their first
choice when they come back to Macau.

Cooperate with travel agencies and airline
companies to develop long-haul visitor
market.

Launch promotions featuring GEH’s excellent
location to attract guests to extend length of
overnight stay, integrating with local tourism
resources, especially World Cultural Heritage
scenic spots.

Improve marketing strategy and enhance
promotions and publicities from time to
time in order to encourage existing gaming
patrons to come back to GEH and attract
new customers around the world.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
C. Risk Management (continued)
(2) Significant Risks and Strategies (continued)

REREERAIBEEEZ
C. BBEE(E)
2 TERBRFTH(E)

¢)  Anti-money laundering (“AML"): o R AEZE (B R )
No assurance that the existing AML policies of BTEERERNEERAN
the Group are in compliance with applicable 7L RER R CEM
AML laws and that the policies in place could WL ERBEERZS
sufficiently prevent or detect the occurrence of KR A B B R RIAE
money laundering activities at casinos. SR REIRE o
e  Review the existing compliance policies e THEMREMAEH
regularly. I
e Comply with the reporting and compliance s BTBREERBRAR
procedures as request by The Gaming NBIEEBHBRTEZ
Inspection and Coordination Bureau or the mERGHRIER -
compliance department of SJM.
e  Stay alert of the industrial practices. e HETEER-
e Give regular training to the staff. e THAEBIRMHISE
gl
d)  Reliance on SIM’s Concession Contract: d FHEREZZLESL -

The Group’s gaming business is solely relied
on SJM’s Concession Contract which will expire
on 31 March 2020 and the existing services
agreement with SUM. Termination of the SJM’s
Concession Contract or the services agreement
with SUM for whatever reasons or the renewal
thereof is not granted to or made by SJM or
unfavourable change in the terms of the services
agreement would have impact on the gaming
business of the Group.

o Kick off liaison with SUM to extend the
services agreement as its concessionaire
licence has been extended.
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practice and the industrial practices and RERRITEDSHR

make changes to the existing business plans
or strategies, as and when appropriate.

o Keep close communications with SJM in this
respect.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
C. Risk Management (continued)

(2) Significant Risks and Strategies (continued)
e)  Credit risk on advances to gaming patrons on
unsecured basis:
Increasing competition for gaming patrons might
create pressure to extend credit on unsecured
basis to these gaming patrons which would
increase exposure to credit risk.

° Assess the credit worthiness of customers
to ensure that credits are made to parties
with good credit history and a good history
of performance records.

° Regularly monitor the activities of individual
credit account for the management to decide
if the credit facility shall be continued,
changed or cancelled.

° Delegate a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals, and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

° Perform impairment assessment under
expected credit losses (“ECL’) model
upon application of HKFRS 9, as part of
the Group’s credit risk management. The
management assessed the ECL for trade
receivables individually as at 1 April 2018
and 31 March 2019, and also assessed
impairment allowance for remaining trade
receivables and all available forward looking
information.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

D. Management Confirmation

The Board had received a confirmation from the management
on the effectiveness of the Systems of the Group for the Year.
The Audit Committee and the Board, upon reviewing the
Systems, were not aware of any significant issues that would
have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy
of the Group’s operational, financial and compliance areas
of the Systems.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication
policy and shall review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company communicates with the Shareholders
mainly in the following ways: (a) the holding of annual general
meetings and special general meetings (“SGM”), if any, which may
be convened for specific purposes to provide opportunities for
the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (b) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/
or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press releases
providing updated information of the Group; (c) the availability of
latest information of the Group in the Company’s website; (d) the
holding of press conference(s) from time to time; and (e) meeting
with investors and analysts on a regular basis and participating
investor road show and sector conference.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit
the Company’s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on the
Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key Dates”
section of this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
substantial separate issues, including the re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for the 2018
AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and notices of all other general meetings were
sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before the
meetings.

The chairperson/members of the Board Committee and the
external auditor had also attended the 2018 AGM to answer
questions from the Shareholders. With the assistance of the
Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the meeting had explained
the procedures for conducting a poll during the meeting.
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Dividend Policy

The Company had adopted a dividend policy which intends to
provide Shareholders with regular interim and final dividends
(as the case may be) based on the earnings attributable to its
Shareholders after taking into consideration of, inter alia, (i) cash
flow requirements for business operations; (ii) cash available,
financial liabilities and capital commitment; (i) market environment
and challenges; and (iv) future development and investment
opportunities. The declaration of dividends or recommendation
on such payment shall be subject to all applicable laws, rules
and regulations including but not limited to the Listing Rules, the
applicable laws of Bermuda and the memorandum and bye-laws
of the Company. The management will continuously review the
divided policy and propose any amendments to the Board for
approval.

Shareholders’ Rights
Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Code.

Right to Convene/Call a General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) not less than one-tenth (10%) of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit of
the requisition carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall have the right to submit a written requisition
requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition
(a) must state the object(s) of the meeting, and (b) must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the principle office of the
Company in Hong Kong for attention of the Company Secretary,
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed
by one or more requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified
with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a SGM by
serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as not in order, the requisitionists will
be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the SGM will not be
convened as requested.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Right to Convene/Call a General Meetings (continued)

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a
day not more than two months after the date of deposit of a
proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said date
of deposit of the requisition. In addition, such meeting convened
by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened
by Board.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting
Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the registered Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, or not less than
100 of such registered Shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting;
and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed
by all the requisitionists must be deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong with a sum reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not less than six
weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution or not less than one week before the meeting in the
case of any other requisition. Provided that an AGM is called for
a date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited,
such requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director
The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s website.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company whose contact details are shown on “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” of this Annual Report.

Constitutional Documents
There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.

Auditor’s Independence and Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members of
the Audit Committee was of the view that the Company’s auditor,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) is independent and
has recommended the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s
auditor at the 2019 AGM. During the Year, Deloitte has rendered
audit services and certain non-audit services to the Group and
the remuneration paid/payable to it by the Company is set out as
follows:

Service rendered B 32 3 AR 3%
Audit services Z HUR 7
Non-audit services FEZE R
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT
HOTEL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 69
to 158, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters
RERBR

Valuation of investment properties

RENMEZHE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significant assumptions
and judgements involved in the valuation as set out in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
RITHEEREDEZHER—EHEREREFE - RA
MG E MMM T4 E - HEPRERRR

#

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties held
for rental under operating leases of commercial
properties in Macau amounted to HK$696,900,000 as
at 31 March 2019. Fair value changes of investment
properties of HK$17,600,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March

2019.

AR A B S IR K MY SE14FT B BB - F20194 3731
B EXEEREAEVELEHENRMAFAED
TR & 7 184 1) % 1696,000,00008 7T - BEMERA
B 6.2 # £17,600,0007% 7T E ) 8 £ 2019434318 1E
FEZHRARRNAMEEKRAERAER -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by an independent firm of
qualified professional property valuers using property
valuation techniques with significant unobservable
inputs and assumptions of market conditions, including
comparable market transactions with adjustments to
reflect different locations or conditions.

MR A M MR T4AEE X BEEBEZKREME
ARBEDNRE-RBIAEREXEMEMGLETAY
FHERD(BERIRERTABEREAZELETR
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G HZEMEETZEES

RREREEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
TN MEEREERSE

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of the valuation of investment
properties included:

AT EREVEAEZREEZEFERE:

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent qualified
professional property valuers;
TEBLIAEREEMEGLEN 2T - 8
NEEBIL:

° Understanding the valuation basis, methodology
used and underlying assumptions applied
by holding discussion with the independent
qualified professional property valuers; and
HBEVAERBEEMEMEMETI®  UT
RATERMNMAERE HERMEBRR:

° Assessing the reasonableness of the valuation
conducted by the independent qualified
professional property valuers by (i) checking
details of the significant unobservable inputs
including comparable market unit rate of other
similar properties; and (ii) comparing to relevant
market information for the assumptions of
market conditions, including comparable market
transactions, with adjustments to reflect different
locations or conditions.
BAGNFATSEEANAEER ARE(BER
U R AL B NISEE) k(i) HEBR

MAZBRBNEATSZER (BEARTLRZ
M5 R Z AR AR E GG FEBLAE
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters
RERBR

RREREEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
TN MEEREERSE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from individual gaming patrons

BREXEFZEZEWRZHERT G

We identified impairment assessment of trade
receivables from individual gaming patrons as a key
audit matter due to the involvement of subjective
judgement and management estimates in evaluating
the expected credit losses (“ECL") of the Group’s trade
receivables from individual gaming patrons at the end
of the reporting period.
RTHEEEMNBEEEFZESRB R 2 BEN G/ —
FERERFR RARZHBRFEBENELER
ZESRRRZIEHEEER(AREEBFED IR
TEHEBREREMRE -

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s trade receivables
from individual gaming patrons, net of impairment
allowance of HK$53,126,000, amounted to
HK$14,840,000 as disclosed in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements. As explained in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in
the current year, the Group adopted Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard 9 Financial Instruments
("HKFRS 9”) as at 1 April 2018 in accordance with the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 9.

AR S BT R 3 BT 5T 20FT # B8 - 7201943 A 31
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1#53,126,000%8 7018 ) /14,840,000 JT © # 1A 47 & Bf
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of trade receivables from individual gaming patrons
included:

AT HENBEEFZE 5 R W 2 BET G
ZRRFBE:

° Understanding key controls on how the
management estimates the impairment
allowance for trade receivables;
THREEEBGFAEIRUGR Z R EREE 2B
EH

° Testing the accuracy of the ECL adjustment
made by the Group as at 1 April 2018 on initial
application of HKFRS 9;

A BEEER2018F4F1BUIBERB BN
HMEEAFESRFELCERHEEERAR L
T

° Testing the integrity of information used by the

management to assess the ECL of the individual
gaming patrons, including ageing analysis
as at 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019, on a
sample basis, by comparing individual items
in the analysis with the relevant supporting
documents;
i 38 0 AT M 51 38 B B AE B AR B XU 2 HE B
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters
RERBR

RREREEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
TN MEEREERSE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from individual gaming patrons (continued)

BRBEEEFZESBBR ZRETE(E)

As disclosed in notes 20 and 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the Group
estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of each of
the trade receivable from individual gaming patrons
individually, after considering the financial background,
creditability, ageing analysis, and likelihood of
collection with reference to repayment history
and/or past due status of the respective gaming
patrons. Estimated loss rates are based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
gaming patrons and are adjusted for forward-looking
information. The impairment allowance amount of
the individual gaming patrons is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows with
the consideration of expected future credit losses.

WA MG RRMT20R2HTE - BEEEER

2N =]

ER2EZBYEPZBNRRER APREETR
MBEER  ERE - REDW R ATEEME - @5 FF &

BERBYEFcERESRER 2 2HNEREERR
TH MR BRRENERNBEEFPEHNFHACES
BRENE ARBEAMELEEETHE - BHIEY
BEPZREBBEBEDARBHRREEBRERRE
ERmMERGFRKREREREZENEZRTE -

As disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised an additional
impairment allowance amount of HK$35,117,000 for
the trade receivables from individual gaming patrons
for the year and the Group’s lifetime ECL on the trade
receivables from individual gaming patrons as at 31
March 2019 amounted to HK$53,126,000.
BUOEEMEREMIRAFEE BEERAF
EENBEEFZESRERWRRERBIINBREREER
#35,117,000/8 7t &2 & & B N201943A31H 5t & 7!
BEEFPZESRRFERHEHGEEEESR
53,126,000/ T °

° Challenging management’'s basis and

judgement in determining the impairment
allowance for trade receivables from individual
gaming patrons as at 1 April 2018 and 31
March 2019, including the identification of
credit-impaired trade receivables from individual
gaming patrons, the reasonableness of
management’s basis of estimated loss rates
applied in each gaming patron with reference
to historical default rates and forward-looking
information;
B EIEEN2018F4H1H k20196 3A31HE
EREBBREFZESEY R Z AR
EERHAE BESMNENBEEEFZEER
BEEZRWN BEEE2ERELEHXRLATRE
MEHNHEBEELEERBMABRARZEESR
M

° Evaluating the disclosures regarding the
impairment assessment of trade receivables in
notes 4, 20 and 32 to the consolidated financial
statements; and
TR EMBEHREAN TS - 20Kk EHEE S E
W2 BEFHRKE: &

° Testing subsequent settlements of the credit-
impaired trade receivables from individual
gaming patrons, on a sample basis, by
inspecting supporting documents in relation
to cash receipt from those individual gaming
patrons subsequent to the end of the current
reporting period.
BERBEAMEPRRABLZSZENBELEP
ZBReWRZBAXN  HEREEANBE R
FZEEREESEEANREEN -
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A BET R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the ZEBMMBZGESHKBRR2SE
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether  ZA&K717H) B TTF%/\EE RSB MKER
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from REAETFEBRPKFXRERMEBNE X
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue #HaRPR - WHAH A ATE R O ZEEAD
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a 4% - RSB EE B EQFEF0MK
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies f{£/ B N{EARE)EEmMI EH M A

Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility &) o K775t AR & & A B\ T ] & b A
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of T EAEHAEST - AERZ A KFEH
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, #:#F% @ W TREFBRIEF BRI EBNET
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HYE X {283 IMFATF AR E A B aR PRI -
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. $EiRFERMATREMERFFEERMELS » WHE
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered fEABIHKEEAIASIEFB B EF AERIE
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably ZEHAMBEREIFELHLERT » BIHF
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken R AZ K

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise {EARIBREBER BB EAMETEZITED

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 5+ AT EBEEBEZBRERETERAFTEH

throughout the audit. We also: B WRIFERBREE - K170

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the e E&)”;'J&E’ﬁﬁé\ﬁﬁ‘%i&iﬂhﬁé\k%ﬁi}i
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 5o I 8 B BB K 85 AR R A /R By
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to FEM%EL BRI RITERIZT - &
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and BRENBENEZREANITHNE
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of RIRHE - ARIFFRIE P REF
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is Bl RE O WEER RGN WL
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve FEBNANEREEE 2 & Bk ARee
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, IR B 1t 3 K A EE K £ AR R At @ ﬁtl:ffi
or the override of internal control. REEFBANERMERAE R RR

it by S e

okt
=
i
£
S
?«5
il

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the e THR BN
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate ERBEATEENEZEZRF @E'UF
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing g1t & A ¢
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal x®E
control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used o FIEFEREFBREESTEE UK
[y~

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related B BT 89 g 54 5 A0 AE BE B
disclosures made by the directors. TEE -

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of o MEEEHFAUBELSASTE
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the MELTEE - ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬂ’\]%*%ﬁ
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty BBERREY BEEBEBELKE
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant MENEREARENEHRBERE
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. BERTHEAR - WMATHEREE
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are BATNEEREE  NTAEZ AR
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related EHRRBIESREUBHRERTNEE
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if EREFEE WEEERETZE  AlE
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our AIARITHER - ATHE&EREREE
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up ZERMELBESHNEZRE -
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or M- RKREBEHHIBRAAEER B
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a SETHABRERLENRN -

going concern.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited H2R45HEEFR AT
Annual Report 2018/2019 F i




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A BET R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Kwok Lai Sheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
12 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEREREMEZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & Z2019F3H31H1FF/Z

Revenue WA 5
Cost of sales 5 & A AR
Cost of hotel and gaming operations & J& & 18 % % 7% ~ B K
Gross profit £ H
Other income H b e A
Other loss Hib &8 7
Impairment allowance for trade E SRR 2 BERE
receivables
Fair value changes of investment KEMELAAEBEZ
properties b=
Selling and marketing expenses HERTHHEREE M
Administrative expenses THRER
Finance costs VBER 8
Profit before taxation B A% Al 9
Taxation credit A 18 [O] 8 1
Profit for the year FE s
Other comprehensive income Hh2EK(FX)
(expense)
Items that may be reclassified HEEF SIEE R A
subsequently to profit or loss: HE :
Fair value change of AHHEREZ
available-for-sale investments NABEEEZE
Fair value change of debt i 8 A 2 W
instruments at fair value FTEAREBEZ
through other comprehensive BBIAZ
income NABEEEZE
Reclassification adjustments for HEEBEMEEK
amount transferred to profit HEATEARBEZ
or loss upon disposal of debt BERTERERSE
instruments at fair value through Bt IEN
other comprehensive income DERE
Other comprehensive income FEHME2E KR
(expense) for the year (Ax)
Total comprehensive income FE2EKEEE
for the year
Profit for the year attributable to: JE A6 F 5 A -
Owners of the Company FiN/NETE R DN
Non-controlling interests FE 1= I ==
Total comprehensive income for the  [E 15 F € 2 W 25
year attributable to: B
Owners of the Company KAREAA
Non-controlling interests IR M =
Earnings per share BRAN 13
Basic AR

1,381,335 1,498,351
(39,513) (38,620)
(503,631) (500,808)
838,191 958,923
96,140 44,532
(10,920) (801)
(35,117) -
17,600 53,100
(288,554) (319,139)
(249,695) (255,361)
(171) (12,386)
367,474 468,868
70,823 38,862
438,297 507,730
(1,390)

854 -
1,183 (1,390)
439,480 506,340
367,492 393,574
70,805 114,156
438,297 507,730
371,495 392,740
67,985 113,600
439,480 506,340
HKS0.297E 70 LG 00
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBRR R

At 31 March 2019 #2019 3H31H

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties KEME 14
Property, plant and equipment M- WERERE 15
Prepaid lease payments BAHEERE 16
Debt instruments at fair value ﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬂi@”y¥
through other comprehensive ATEAAEBEZ
income EHELTHE 17
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 18
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEWE #ER
property, plant and equipment BEoENETS
Goodwill kS 19
Current assets MEEE
Inventories, at cost FE EKAE
Trade and other receivables 2 5 Kk H b FE W 20
Debt instruments at fair value FREMEE YRR
through other comprehensive FFTEAAEBEZ
income EHLTA 17
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 18
Prepaid lease payments TEfHH & KB 16
Pledged bank deposits EERT ﬁm 21
Short-term bank deposits EHRITER 21
Bank balances and cash RITEB LR S 21
Current liabilities mEaRE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M FE 3R 22
Amounts due to fellow RERM B QR KIE
subsidiaries 23
Amounts due to non-controlling R—EWBRARZ
interests of a subsidiary FE 12 AR M 73 FRE 24
Taxation payable JE 5 7% 18
Net current assets MENEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities BREERLBBE
Non-current liability FEREBEE
Deferred taxation iR FE T 18 26

Annual Report 2018/2019 F 3§
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696,900
1,237,861
451,413

372,025

16,612
110,960

2,885,771

14,241
245,572

96,783

15,980
44,040
300,662
2,638,143

3,355,421

192,384
3,930

46,200
319,253

561,767
2,793,654
5,679,425

111,254
5,568,171

679,300
1,265,965
464,900

262,965

11,625
110,960

2,795,715

14,424
309,249

160,109
15,703
334
475,516
3,098,510

4,073,845

379,300
3,283

107,600
391,561

881,744

3,192,101

5,987,816

111,012

5,876,804




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBARR R

At 31 March 2019 #2019 3H31H

Capital and reserves BEARKFEE

Share capital N 27 126 130

Reserves 1 4,576,182 3,989,838
Equity attributable to owners KA EEANELERS

of the Company 4,576,308 3,989,968
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR #E = 30 991,863 1,886,836

5,568,171 5,876,804

The consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 158 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
12 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Chi Fai
HEE
Director

EF
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FEIEEFE18EMBA LA RERER
2019F 6 H1I2HKE E T 4L R IRET) % -
YHTHEEREES:

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
BB IE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REREREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3H31H1FF/Z

At 1 April 2017 R20175 4418 130 436,765 668 24,582 - 287 - 3242907 3705339 1773236 5478575
Profit for the year FERT - N - - - - - 393574 393574 114,156 507,730
Fair value change of AEHEREZ
available-for-sale investments NMEEES - - = - (834) - = - (834) (556)  (1,390)
Total comprehensive (expense) FRE2EFD) 4a
income for the year &% - h - - (834) - - 393574 392,740 113,600 506,340
2017 final dividend paid in cash 17F RS
WEESH - . - - - - - (T4245)  (74,245) - (74,245)
2018 interim dividend paid in cash 2018 F ik & -
IRe S - . = - - — - (33866)  (33,866) - (33,866)
At 31 March 2018 2018530318 436,765 3,528,370 3,989,968 1,886,836 5,876,804
Profit for the year FEET = 367,492 367492 70,805 438,297
Fair value change of debt AREMZENR
instruments measured at FELRERL
fair value through other EBIAZAR
comprehensive income BEEY
Reclassification adjustments for HEEBEMRE
amount transferred to profit WEHERARE

or loss upon disposal of debt JEBIARER
instruments at fair value through FEREEEN

other comprehensive income PRAE 534 320 854
Total comprehensive income FE2ENRLE
for the year - 367492 371,495 67,985 439,480
Acquisition of additional interests ~ WE-FEHE2EHE
in a non-wholly owned RAZEMER
subsidiary 396,958 396,958  (962,958)  (566,000)
Ordinary shares repurchased and ~ BERFHLAK
cancelled (note 27) (W#27) - (72611)  (72611) (72,611)
2018 final dividend paid in cash ~ 2018F KH% & -
PEES O - (383 (73,631) - (136)
2019 interim dividend paid in cash ~ 2019F R E# & -

IRE S = - (35871)  (35871) - (3587)
At 31 March 2019 120193831 126 436,765 287 396958 3,713,749 4,576,308 991,863 5,568,171

Note: The other reserve of the Group arose from acquisition of additional — ffit: AEBHMEHE AO LR EREE —H
interests in a non-wholly owned subsidiary from non—controlling F2EMBAT 2EIINER PTE£(RM T
interests (see note 38(a)). 38(a)) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3H31H1FF/Z

Cash flows from operating activities REKEEHCHERE
Profit before taxation & # A 367,474 468,868
Adjustments for: P
Interest income A EWA (82,962) (41,311)
Interest expenses B X H = 12,209
Fair value changes of investment REWMELAABEZ
properties b2 (17,600) (53,100)
Impairment allowance for trade BEHRWAKR ZRE
receivables B 35,117 -
Unrealised exchange loss FIRNE K EE 2,163 -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERREZ
equipment e 103,205 109,346
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HEMEE T E
plant and equipment MERREZER 184 151
Release of prepaid lease payments BN EENRE 15,983 15,711
Loss on disposal of debt instruments TEFEBHEMEME
at fair value through other WHFEAREE
comprehensive income ZEBIAEZEE 854 -
Operating cash flows before movements R EEELXREHA 2
in working capital REFERE 424,418 511,874
Decrease (increase) in inventories BFE .z Em) 183 (805)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other Z 5 I H fth JE W R 2w
receivables (32 hn) 31,415 (18,105)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other B 5K EMERN Kz CR)
payables 3 (23,477) 15,036
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to fellow REZM B QAR HIEZ
subsidiaries 1 hn Ok ) 647 (809)
Cash generated from operations REREEB RS 433,186 507,191
Macau Complementary Tax paid EHURPIPTIS T (1,153) (3)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EBEENEH (90) -
Net cash from operating activities REKEEB R FE 431,943 507,188
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n _\éfﬁﬁﬁii

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3H31H1FF/Z

Cash flows from investing activities REKREGH RENE
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits REUEBRITER
Proceeds from disposal of debt HEFEBEMEE K=
instruments at fair value through other AEAABEZER
comprehensive income THZFFENRE

Interest received 2 F A

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant PEME  HWEZREE
and equipment Z P18 518

Placement of short-term bank deposits FAEBRTER

Acquisition of debt instruments at fair BEAAHME2E KR
value through other comprehensive AEAABEZER
income TA

Acquisition of property, plant and BEWE HEREE
equipment

Placement of pledged bank deposits FAR BT RITER

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEWE HEREH
plant and equipment ZBEfNE®

Addition of prepaid lease payments ANEENEERIE

Acquisition of available-for-sale E%ETM:E%&Q
investments

Net cash used in investing activities AREEEES RS FRE

Cash flows from financing activities KEBMETB 2 EERE
Acquisition of additional interests of a WE—FHFEE2EWRE

non-wholly owned subsidiary NEZ BEINE R
Dividends paid 2k & 2
Payment on repurchase of shares & B & 19 2 - 3K
Repayments to non-controlling interests of BE-—HWBAE 2
a subsidiary FEE IRt 2 B K
Repayment of bank borrowing BEIETEE
Interest paid BT A B
Cash used in financing activities ARmEEE RS
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R& RIREZEY 2 /D
R

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ERBUV A RESE
of the reporting period B

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the EHBARZRB IR E
reporting period, representing bank ZEY  ARTEHK
balances and cash REe
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851,284

165,109
78,679

20
(676,430)

(367,990)

(76,649)
(43,706)

(10,341)
(2,773)

(82,797)

(566,000)
(109,502)
(72,611)

(61,400)

(809,513)
(460,367)

3,098,510

2,638,143

1,038,708
37,724

80
(1,511,402)

(46,503)
)

(11,625)

(267,649)

(760,672)

(108,111)

(13,200
(469,800

)
)
(15,900)
(607,011)

(860,495)

3,959,005

3,098,510




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

General

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange’). The Company’s immediate holding company is
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. The
intermediate holding company of the Company is Emperor
International Holdings Limited (“Emperor International”),
a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability,
the shares of which are also listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. The ultimate holding company of the
Company is Albert Yeung Holdings Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is in
turn held by STC International Limited, being the trustee of
The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”), the settlor
and founder of which is Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr.
Albert Yeung”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the “Corporate Information and Key Dates” section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 38.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current
year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/E

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 — 2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment

Property

Amendments to HKAS 40

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers
The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources:

° gaming operation
hotel operation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in
the opening retained profits (or other components of equity,
as appropriate) and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply
the standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed as at 1 April 2018.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in note 3.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
effect of application of HKFRS 15 and considered that there
is no material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the current year and the retained profits as at
1 April 2018.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
1) the classification and measurement of financial assets
and liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL’) for financial
assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at
1 April 2018. The difference between the carrying amounts
as at 31 March 2018 and the carrying amounts as at 1 April
2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits and
other components of equity, without restating comparative
information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

2.

FERM B R KB E R HER
ERA(EEMBREED ]

(“HKFRSs”) (continued) ()
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) EB e ER LR[S T
Al(#&)

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9

are disclosed in note 3.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

HKFRS 9

HRLLBEMTIREE B S ERNSE
Ve TE AR EIRE
Bt & THRE AT EERE
L& o

F& P& 78 B1 %55 ¥R 5 YE R B 95 P 5| X
ZE BRI M sE3A B FE -

HIGIEF & BRI 7 3 BRI E 9 E
b EUE

TR Y H A ¥4 FE A B 5 (120184 4
R1B)IREBEB BV B REERIFEIHR K
BEA G EREIRNEREME®E
WamEAnEBE(EREEM2ZEK

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and available-for-sale
(“AFS”) investments under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the

date of initial application, 1 April 2018. B EAREBED CEBTAERAHEY
E(AHREEDRENSERFE -

R2018%3A31A
HIR#EGER - BB G

Closing balance at 31 March 2018 -
HKAS 39

R FE395% 423,074
Effect arising from initial application FKEREEBHMBERE
of HKFRS 9: EAFOFEE2HE:
Reclassification BEHNOE
From AFS investments to debt HAHEEREERN
instruments at FVTOCI (Note (a)) NEEFREMEAE
WHsrE2EBHITA
(K77 (a) (423,074) 423,074
Opening balance at 1 April 2018 - M20185F4H18 2 Bi 4]

HKFRS 9 wEir - BEEVBHRE

Al £ 95R

423,074
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (continued)

Notes:

(a) AFS Investments
From AFS debt investments to debt instruments at FVTOC!

Listed bonds with a fair value of HK$423,074,000 were
reclassified from AFS investments to debt instruments at FVTOCI,
as these investments are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling of these assets and the contractual cash flows of
these investments are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. Related fair value losses
of HK$834,000 continued to accumulate in the investments
revaluation reserve as at 1 April 2018.

(b) Impairment under ECL model
The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL
which uses a lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The balances
are assessed individually.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and bank balances are assessed on 12 months expected credit
loss (“12m ECL") basis as there had been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition.

All of the Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI are listed bonds
that are graded in the high credit ratings among rating agencies.
Therefore, these investments are considered to be low credit risk
investments and the loss allowance is assessed on 12m ECL
basis.

As at 1 April 2018, impairment allowance was insignificant
and thus was not provided against the retained profits. Further
assessment is set out in note 32.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments to 2. EAMERKEBITEBHMER
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards HEEA(EEBMBEREER]
(“HKFRSs”) (continued) (&)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but EEMAEERER IR EE
not yet effective RIERMKEREEA
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEBEYEIERERAUTEBMHE N
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not REBZ B REETEETERE
yet effective: R
HKFRS 16 Leases' EBMBRELR HE
F165%
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® EBMBRELR ROk
F17%
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax EBERHBERE FEHNEENTRTH
Treatments' #EZEY)
- BB 23
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business* BRI RS ER FBzER
FIR 2 BE]
Amendments to HKFRS 9  Prepayment Features with ERUBREEDN  AAWMEIREEN
Negative Compensation’ FIR 2 BT o1ia
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets EBMBRELR REEREBE AR
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its F0RRBEGH AECERMEELE
Associate or Joint Venture? ERIFE285 2187 g B2
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material® ERGTLARIRE BARZEES
and HKAS 8 BB SRR
F8H 2B
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment B gl S BREEE
or Settlement! F195 2183
Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in BAEHEL REEARREEREL
Associates and Joint F285R 2] REER
Ventures'
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to ERUBRERR . AEMBREEN2015E
HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle' EH ENTERBCEE
B§ia
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 L 201961 A1H sk 2 1& 5 16 2 F /E B
fE A4 &K
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 2 RETETZERK 2ERABZFE
determined B A%
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 8 202051 A1H sk 2 & B iR 2 & [Z B
fE 4
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for 4 REBEHREERBERLER  EF
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first Uy 8% B B & R 2020F1 A1H = 2 14
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 mrEaEFERERBR2E
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 5 R2021F1A1R S 2 & s 2 FE H
fE A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective (continued)

Except for application of HKFRS 16 mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the
relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16
also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for own
use while other operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into
a principal and an interest portion which will be presented
as financing cash flows by the Group, while upfront prepaid
lease payments will continue to be presented as investing
or operating cash flows in accordance with the nature, as
appropriate.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset
for prepaid lease payments for leasehold land where the
Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result
in potential changes in classification of this asset depending
on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitment of HK$2,831,000 as disclosed
in note 35. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value
or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$772,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of HK$4,950,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may
be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits paid would be considered as additional lease
payments and included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received
would be considered as advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group has elected the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and
not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC) — Int 4. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed
whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already
existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore,
The Group has elected the modified retrospective approach
for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application to the opening
retained profits without restating comparative information.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited H2R45HEEFR AT

2.

FE PR % 48 2 AR A4S 5] BB B B 3R
EEA(EBMBREED D)

(&)
BERVBREERF165KHE
(%)

20194 3A31H » AEEH Al
/) 4% & T & & ¥&2,831,000/% 7T (36 40
M FES5FTIEER) - MAE BB ®E
EBIE165 %  AEEBHATEZE
HERRTAREERBEESE K
FZEHERFAREENEHEED
& o

AN - NREBB A AR REREE
E1R2772,0008 7T & E WA AR EHE
B 12 %4,950,000/8 TR /B RN EE
SETEFI7TRNEERMNEEE -
REBEBRBMGHRELAE165IA TH
HENREE  ZFREXIFFRIE
FEREE ERENB N B %
FReNRMEANHEZHERAL -
EfE AR [ & 2 & 1) 3 2R R AR
REBEIHENRALFAERAEEEDN
FREE - DR AREHE SRS H
ERemE SRR EENRK-

ERMFMEREERGTE 2 RE
BrASHRMEMANES - K&
BEERAREBRIFLZBELX
AEREBYHHREENF165RMN
AR SHEL AT LS ERE
7THREEEEEHEREREZRE
) -REFINEBEE - HLHEELE
EHEZAH AR TERIERR
TEREAHSNSESHELERAE
B ERTERFI7R ME S (BRI HR
TREBREe)-R2BR4AR A0 -
At - "EETSEHFEEOESE
RIBE-EREXEREHACH
EZBEE - i XEECHRERE
B S ERIE165% ((ER AR A)
BRAKETZERE  UHEREX
RAZRFAZEZRMRERN > M
WEEHLBEHR -

Annual Report 2018/2019 F i




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties,
debt instruments at FVTOCI and AFS investments which are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transferred at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction priced.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon
liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of
equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not longer than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to
the other assets of the unit pro-rata based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating
units). Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal
(or any of the cash-generating unit within group of cash-
generating unit in which the Group monitors goodwill).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with

transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations

(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including bundle sales for hotel accommodation
and food and beverage, the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services
to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a

performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is
to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group's performance in
transferring control of services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

Revenue recognition

The Group provides services to a gaming concessionaire
in Macau under service arrangements for gaming operation
in mass market hall, VIP room and slot machine hall. The
performance obligation represents provision of gaming-
related marketing and public relation services to the gaming
concessionaire. Revenue from such services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group is entitled to receive its service income according
to the relevant operating performance from the gaming
concessionaire which simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group also provides hotel rooms to customers. The
performance obligation represents provision of hotel
accommodation services for customers. Revenue from hotel
rooms is recognised as a performance obligation satisfied
over time as the Group is entitled to receive its income
according to the relevant operating performance from the
customers and the customers simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs.

The transaction price of food and beverage sales is the
net amount collected from the customer for such goods.
The transaction price for such transactions is recorded as
revenue when the goods are transferred to the customer.
There is no other separate performance obligation identified
except for delivery of goods. The revenue on food and
beverage sales is recognised as revenue when the food and
beverage are delivered and titles have been passed.

The Group has other contracts that include multiple goods
and services, such as packages that bundle food and
beverage and other services with hotel stays. For such
arrangements, the Group allocates revenue to each good or
service based on its relative stand-alone selling price. The
Group primarily determines the stand-alone selling price of
hotel rooms and food and beverage based on the amount
that the Group charges when each is sold separately in
similar circumstances to similar customers.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

(continued)
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue arising from services provided to a gaming
concessionaire in Macau under service arrangements for
gaming operations in mass market hall, VIP room and slot
machine hall is recognised when the provision of gaming-
related marketing and public relation services are rendered
and the Group is entitled to receive its service income
according to the relevant operating performance from the
gaming concessionaire.

Revenue from hotel accommodation is recognised upon the
provision of the accommodation services. Revenue from
food and beverage sales and other ancillary services are
recognised upon the provision of goods and services.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Service income is recognised when the services are
provided.
Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment

basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 E.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost or deemed cost upon transfer
from investment properties, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or
deemed cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant prepaid lease payments) at the date
of transfer is recognised in OCI and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to the retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Borrowing costs
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating)
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between leasehold
land and building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories represent food and beverage, consumable and
other goods of hotel and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated using
the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 April 2018. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments/
receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. For
financial instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (continued)

(i)  Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for
debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result
of interest income calculated using the effective
interest method are recognised in profit or loss. All
other changes in the carrying amount of these debt
instruments are recognised in OCI and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve.
Impairment allowances are recognised in profit or loss
with corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing
the carrying amounts of these debt instruments. The
amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the
same as the amounts that would have been recognised
in profit or loss if these debt instruments had been
measured at amortised cost. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in OCI are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including debt instruments at FVTOCI, trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances) and lease receivables. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experiences, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

The Group always recognises a lifetime ECL for trade
receivables under simplified approach. The ECL on these
receivables are assessed individually.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over 2 years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 E.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Except for debt instruments at FVTOCI, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through
an impairment allowance account. For investments
in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI,
the impairment allowance is recognised in OCI and
accumulated under the heading of the investments
revaluation reserve without reducing the carrying
amount of these debt instruments.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: AFS financial assets and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

(i)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified
as (a) loans and receivables, or (b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL").

Debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS debt instruments relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method,
and changes in foreign exchange rates, if applicable
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in OCI and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (continued)

(i)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank balances
and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

difficulty of the
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 E.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 April 2018) (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on the receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amounts
are reduced through the use of allowance accounts.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
financial asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS debt instruments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an AFS financial asset, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and amounts due to
non-controlling interests of a subsidiary) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 22448 5EHR A 7]
Annual Report 2018/2019 F 3§

3.

TEEHEREE)
EMITAE)
EEEEE)
HIUEReBEE
EEBEENDRRERENANER
EmEGeREEANEAREDE
ERREAAREDREBRETS HE
B AERETERIERSREE -

R IFERRBEHXATENERE

ER EEREEEDK L EERKE
HENEZHENBEERR -

R LR R IE A BB NG MELAE

OB BEMEEMBETEAAE
BzEHEIAEKREE  LpRNEES

ERERERAZRTRAaNERET D

BEiEHE -

RERIEAARLESREER - &
RN E BB R 2 Rt RE K
BEEMNHDEERD

tHEEREZMTA
DHEEBEE
REBERUTZENEREZETA
TIRBEAHNLTHZEEAR SR AE
MEZMETAZEEDBEAERHAR
SR o

EmtTA

HmE T AT AT FEREE RN IE A
EEBRZEEYHEERNGER 2T
AEH - ARRIBITZEZETAT
ﬁa%m%%ﬁEM%E%%ﬁ&K

7J
o °©

EEAE
éﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%&ﬁ@ﬁﬁi K
[ R KB AR R R R—REH B A
Z#Tk%¥ @E&%%A%ﬂ
FERBEK AT E -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax for such investment properties are measured
in accordance with the above general principles set out in
HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the
properties will be recovered).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
OCI or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in OCI or directly in equity
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operation are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in OCIl and accumulated in equity under the heading of the
translation reserve and will be reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgment applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

4.

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Critical judgment applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties situated in Macau with carrying
amount of HK$696,900,000 as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$679,300,000) are held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, the directors of the
Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of such investment properties are
recovered through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group
has recognised deferred tax liabilities of HK$87,563,000
(2018: HK$86,560,000) on changes in fair value of
investment properties subject to Macau Complementary Tax
(“CT”), on the assumption that these investment properties
will be recovered through use as at 31 March 2019.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, which may have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties of HK$696,900,000 as
at 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$679,300,000) was based on a
valuation on these properties conducted by an independent
firm of qualified professional property valuers using property
valuation techniques which involve significant unobservable
inputs and assumptions of market conditions, including
comparable market transactions with adjustments to reflect
different locations or conditions. Changes to the assumptions
would result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties and corresponding adjustments to the
amount of gain or loss reported in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

4,

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers to perform the valuation of the
Group’s investment properties. At the end of each reporting
period, the designated team works closely with the an
independent firm of qualified professional property valuers to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements.
The Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where
inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in the active
market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group
will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs.
Where there is a material change in the fair value of the
assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the
board of directors of the Company.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from

individual gaming patrons

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
lifetime ECL of trade receivables from individual gaming
patrons, after considering the financial background,
creditability, ageing analysis, and likelihood of collection with
reference to repayment history and/or past due status of
respective gaming patrons. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the gaming patrons and are adjusted for forward-looking
information.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the Group’s trade receivables from
individual gaming patrons are disclosed in note 32.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of trade
receivables from individual gaming patrons was
HK$14,840,000 (2018: HK$40,170,000), net of impairment
allowance of HK$53,126,000 (2018: HK$18,009,000) (see
note 20 for details).

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 22448 5EHR A 7]
Annual Report 2018/2019 F 3§

EER BRI E
ZEERIRGE)

AT REM ZETERRE)
RAEWEZ 1 E(E)

R B A 182 15 A R R
HAT AR EREWE Y D EE -
YEIRBABET AN AEE
SREB A EBEEY EEBEAR
SFEAREENBENE - NG 2B
K EEEHEBTAARTENE
HEMERAIE - AT RREES
b 18 501 2 BB A Fo BB
SEMBAKE - AEESEEES
KRR EM A B - 8 A B
RREERT ST BENDHIEE -
YERWABETARE - AR
18 % A2 45 B A BUR1E AR
EEH - SEENRABELRE
AEDE  BDEREWALAEE
SER -

EFIEEEFZEZERMZHE

1
AEEERERERMBGMNRR  FE
BE REITUARKEZATEES
EZRBYEFPHNENRTHER a8
B EETENEEEPZES RN
ReeHMAHMEEBRSHE - B5tH
BERBEENERENETRIAEY
EPMBEMFERAE  YIZAEEE
BT IARE -

EHEERRBARUMATZIEZDHH
B BRAEEERNEYEFPZES
JEYR 2 BRI BE R M aE32 -

R2019F3A31E  ARBYERFZ
H 5’k 2 Bk E {E 514,840,000
7 7T (20184F : 40,170,0005% JT) (1 K
B (B B 553,126,000 JT (20184F :

18,009,000/% 7)) (5F 1§ R Bt 3£ 20) ©




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

4.

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimates of repayment of amounts due to non-

controlling interests of a subsidiary

The Group’s carrying amount of the interest-free amounts
due to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary as at 31
March 2019 was HK$46,200,000 (2018: HK$107,600,000).
According to the shareholders’ agreements, these amounts
are repayable only when the indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Luck United Holdings Limited (“Luck United”),
and its subsidiaries have surplus fund. Surplus fund
represents available cash within these subsidiaries after
paying all operating expenses and payables, including but
not limited to bank loans and third party loans which are
due for repayment together with the accrued interest. The
carrying amount of the amounts due to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary and the deemed contribution by
the non-controlling interests may be adjusted to reflect the
revised estimated cash flows when the Group revises its
estimates of the timing and amount of repayment to the non-
controlling interests based on the cash flow forecasts and
availability of surplus fund of Luck United and its subsidiaries,
and consequently affect the amount of imputed interest to be
recognised in profit or loss, if any, over the expected life of
the amounts due to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

5. Revenue 5. WA

REEZWADHFIT

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

Recognised over time: R—BREE®ER:
Service income from gaming operation in mass RISIER ER 2 RBHKA
market hall 664,826
Service income from gaming operation in VIP room & & EBY 252 REKA 429,423
Service income from gaming operation in slot BFHREBEYEB 2 REKA
machine hall 42,607
Hotel room income BIEEBRA 102,748
Others Efb 4,283
1,243,887
Recognised at a point in time: REERBER:
Food and beverage sales BEREE 113,260
Others HAth 2,186
115,446
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZWA 1,359,333
Rental income from investment properties REMEZHEBRA 22,002
1,381,335
Transaction price allocated to the remaining PTEHREEFEHNRTEANEEN
performance obligation for contracts with RZER
customers
All sales or services rendered from gaming and hotel FIBEBERBEXBRERZEERR
operations are for periods of one year or less. As permitted BB —FHUAT o HEBY KR
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these EEBEISHAE  PREEZFR
unsatisfied contracts are not disclosed. BHENNZSERATTHE -

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:  AEBEZWADHTHOT :

Service income from gaming operation in mass RISE R EK 2 RE WA

market hall 723,188
Service income from gaming operation in VIP room &% BE¥ £ 2 REKA 490,864
Service income from gaming operation in slot BFHBELEBZRBKA

machine hall 39,265
Hotel room income B IE BB WA 100,053
Food and beverage sales BERIHE 112,733
Rental income from investment properties KEMEZHSKA 22,148
Others Hity 10,100

1498 351
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 E.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

6.

Segment Information

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) have been identified as the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM”). The Executive Directors review
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources.

For gaming operation, the Executive Directors regularly
analyse gaming revenue in terms of service income from
mass market hall, VIP room and slot machine hall. No
operating results or discrete financial information is presented
to the Executive Directors in relation to the above analysis.
The Executive Directors review the revenues and operating
results of gaming operation as a whole and have identified
the operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 as
gaming operation and hotel operation.

The segment information reported externally is analysed
on the basis of their types of services supplied by the
Group’s operating divisions which is consistent with the
internal information that is regularly reviewed by the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance. This is also the basis of organisation in the
Group, whereby the management has chosen to organise the
Group around different services provided by the Group. The
principal activities of the operating and reportable segments
are as follows:

Gaming operation — Mass market hall, VIP room and
slot machine hall operations
and provision of gaming-
related marketing and public
relation services in the casino
of the Grand Emperor Hotel in
Macau

Hotel operation — Hotel operation in the Grand
Emperor Hotel and the Inn
Hotel Macau including property
investment income from
investment properties in these
hotels in Macau

The Executive Directors assess the performance of individual
operating and reportable segments based on a measure
of adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation, loss on disposal of debt instruments at FVTOCI,
exchange loss at corporate level and fair value changes of
investment properties (the “Adjusted EBITDA”).

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited H2R45HEEFR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued)
Inter-segment revenue is charged at a price mutually agreed
by both parties.

Information regarding the above segments is reported below:

Segment revenues and results
For the year ended 31 March 2019

TEER(E
@ﬁﬁ%AE%ﬁ@%ﬁ%ZE%
B -

BRLASB2EREZ®RWT:

THERBRAREE
B Z201943531H IF FE

Segment revenue

FEBA

External revenue HHMA 1,136,856 244,479 1,381,335 = 1,381,335
Inter-segment revenue SEERA = 1,621 1,621 (1,621) =
Total ad 1,136,856 246,100 1,382,956 (1,621) 1,381,335
Segment result based on the Adjusted 48 38 B EBITDA 2

EBITDA EES 332,003 66,042 398,045 398,045

Bank interest income

Interest income from debt instruments
at FVTOCI

Loss on disposal of debt instruments at
FVTOCI

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Exchange loss at corporate level

Release of prepaid lease payments

Fair value changes of investment
properties

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

For the year ended 31 March 2018

RITM B A
EREMEAKENELABE
ZEBIEZFSMA
HEFRAMPARGATEAN
BEZEKIAZER (854)
NE BERRBIFE

52,680

30,282

(103,205)
TEBENEREE (10,920)
FREMEERE (15,983)
BREMEAABEZEY

17,600
HisER (1n)
B 35 A1 4 7l 367,474

& Z2018F3H31H IF F /&

Segment revenue FERA
External revenue HIMEA 1,253,317 245,034 1,498,351 = 1,498,351
Inter-segment revenue SBERRA - 1,621 1,621 (1,621) -
Total A 1,253,317 246,655 1,499,972 (1,621) 1,498,351
Segment result based on the Adjusted A A ZEBITDAZ

EBITDA GEES 448,751 63,950 512,701 512,701
Bank interest income |ITHBBA 38,471
Interest income from AFS investments AT ERE 2 F SR A 2,840
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRBEINE

equipment (109,346)
Exchange loss at corporate level CEBEMELER (801)
Release of prepaid lease payments BREMEERE (15,711)
Fair value changes of investment BRENEARBEZEY

properties 53,100
Finance costs BEEM (12,386)
Profit before taxation B 8% A s 468,868
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

6.

Segment Information (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating
and reportable segments is disclosed as it is not regularly
provided to the Executive Directors for review.

Other than the segment information disclosed in above, there
was no other information reviewed by the CODM for the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

Geographical information
The Group’s revenue was derived principally in Macau.

The non-current assets, other than debt instruments at
FVTOCI and AFS investments, are all located in Macau.

Information about major customer

During the year, revenue derived from one (2018: one) customer
which contributed over 10% of the Group’s total revenue amounted
to HK$1,139,510,000 (2018: HK$1,256,266,000). The revenue
related to the gaming operation and the hotel operation.

TEER(E)
TEBAREEE)
MR EEREIAREEERT L

Bl MU EBEABON

B EXHEBEDBEERI  #HZE2019
F3A31H N2018F3A31H Ik F &
N EEMERBEIFELELERRA
=R o

it E & R
AEBERAETEERPIELS o

FRERRBEECEBEME2RE WS
AEARBEZEHBIARAFEE
BEBRIN ML RIRFT ©

ERETEEREFZ2ER
RAFE  REMAERBK A10%
W EZ—%R018F: —R) BT FH
g A #1,139,510,0007% 7T (20184 :
1,256,266,0007% JT) ° 32 A L 1H 72
EBRBEXEKER -

Other Loss Hfth E5 48
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FH&T
Exchange loss b X &5 18 801
Finance Costs MKEA
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FH&T
Interest on bank borrowing RITEER S 12,209
Bank charges RITFEE 177
12,386
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

9. Profit Before Taxation 9. KRFANRF

Profit before taxation has been arrived & & B A 2 15 -
at after charging:

Staff costs, including directors’ BINA  BEEEHE
emoluments 445,694 435,739
Retirement benefit scheme RIKAE A 5T 814 5K
contributions (net of forfeited (B EH Z2019F &
contributions of HK$606,000 and 2018F3A31ALFEZ
HK$458,000 for the years ended BRI 5%606,0007% 7T
31 March 2019 and 2018) 458,000 7T) 5,994 6,049
Total staff costs BET A 451,688 441,788
Auditor’s remuneration % B BN B & 3,780 3,750
Commission expenses in gaming BEEKE RAeEA
operation (included in selling and GTABERMIGHE
marketing expenses) BEHMA) 227,748 259,943
Cost of inventories recognised as an R ARSI 2FE KA
expense 39,513 38,620
Depreciation of property, plant and ME KERKBIINE
equipment 103,205 109,346
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, H& M E  #E KL
plant and equipment B i 184 151
Loss on disposal of debt instruments & % 38 E fth 2 M Uk 35
at FVTOCI HAEARBEZER
THAZEE =
Release of prepaid lease payments R BEMNEERE 15,711
and after crediting: REFA:
Gross rental income from investment R EMEZH WA B
properties 22,148
Less: Direct operating expenses R DA B ER A & U A B9 R
incurred for investment EMEMEENE
properties that generated BREBR
rental income (661)
21487
Bank interest income |ITH B WA 38,471
Interest income from debt instruments BB HM 2 EWFTE
at FVTOCI ARBEZEHIAZ
B WA =
Interest income from AFS investments AJ#EHE®RE 2 F 8 WA 2,840
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

10. EX - FETHAEBREEH

10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’

Emoluments [
(@) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules
and CO, is as follows:

2019
Fees ik

(@ EEREBRITHAEHM

EENEFRTRAEBRAFE 2
Fr B AR 38 A AR Bl e 2 R
Pl g

Other emoluments Hip#i e
Salaries and other benefits EOREAMET
Performance related incentive BEBHBNES
payment (Note) (hi#)
2018 20184
Fees we - 150 150 180 180 180 840
Other emoluments Hiie
Salaries and other benefits FeRERER S - - - - = -
Performance related incentive BRBHANES
payment (Note) () - - = - = = -
- 150 150 180 180 180 840

Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined
with reference to the financial performance and individual
performance.

The chief executives of the Company are also the
Executive Directors and the emoluments disclosed
above include those services rendered by them as chief
executives.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’ 10. €% - T E{THAEREEH

Emoluments (continued) B (=

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) 1 & % BN
The five highest paid individuals did not include any RBEFEFERN AdmE= Mz
director of the Company for both years. The total ATTBEBERARGBEMES © %
emoluments of the five highest paid individuals for both hEERTMATRAREFE 2
years were as follows: FmamaT:

Salaries and other benefits e kHEMEFR
Performance related bonuses BRI A M TEAT 5,096
Retirement benefit scheme B ORAE B FH B 5k
contributions 588
17,441

Lt B 2 H B F

Emoluments of the employees were

within the following bands: AT E -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L2
2,500,000 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 T 2
3,500,0007% T 2
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 T 2=
4,000,0007% JT .
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 T &
4,500,000/ JT 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 T E
5,000,0007% JT 1
No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors RAEFEEA AEEHERE
and the five highest paid employees as an inducement ERk A& e MES EM
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation FE - MERTRSIEEMATIRN
for loss of office for both years. None of the directors MAREE R 2SN BER 2
and the five highest paid individuals has waived any B RNMEFEAN  BIEESN
emoluments during both years. hemayMEEREEMSF

[
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’
Emoluments (continued)

(c)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the plans are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of the
independent trustees. The Group and each employee
make mandatory contributions of 5% of relevant payroll
costs with monthly cap of HK$1,500 to the scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all qualifying employees of a
subsidiary of the Group in Macau since 1 September
2014. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under control of
independent trustees. The retirement scheme cost
recognised in profit or loss represents contributions
payable to funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the scheme. Where there are employees of the
Group who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the Macau government. The Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

During the vyear, the retirement benefit scheme
contributions were HK$5,994,000 (2018: HK$6,049,000),
net of forfeited contributions of HK$606,000 (2018:
HK$458,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

11. Taxation Credit 11. B E O %

Macau Complementary Tax B P P15 8 78

- current year - ANHEIH IR (40,545) (50,082)
— over(under)provision in prior years - BEFEHERE
(BETRE) 33 (714)
- reversal of tax provision in prior - BRBTEFE 2MIE
years B 111,605 96,178
71,093 45,382
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERANEW
— current year - REAR IR (58) (62)
— overprovision in prior years - BAEFEHEEEE 30 .
(28) (62)
Deferred taxation (note 26) iR RE 18 (41 i726) (242) (6,458)
Taxation credit f¥ 1A 0] £ 70,823 38,862
The CT is calculated at the applicable rate of 12% of the RN IDIEMEEE 2 G ERT R
estimated assessable profits for both years. Mz ERABEI12%E -
Pursuant to the CT law, the CT assessment on the estimated BEHANE  EINFER@MEE
assessable profit in a year of assessment will lapse in FERBL SN 2 BT B A R 5% 7 Bt
five consecutive years after that year of assessment. FERBHEERFERN -NEWMY
At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the R -ARFAESHRHABBEBE TR
Company reassessed the adequacy of the CT provision MEEFELET (G - Wik UL R E B |
and determined to reverse part of the Group’s relevant CT MAEBR2013F B FE 2 1B
provision of HK$111,605,000 for the 2013 year of assessment 7T T £ 15111,605,0007%8 7T (20184 :
(2018: HK$96,178,000 for the 2012 year of assessment) 20124 ¥ i F £ 96,178,000 T) °
accordingly.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BEREMNEWR HIEMESE 2B ER
estimated assessable profits for both years. s M 2 16.5% 5 & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

11. Taxation Credit (continued)
The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before taxation

11. BB (&
AEEHBEORTREAEER LM
PERAEZRBAREFYELT :

B 7 AT & 367,474 468,868

Tax charge at the CT rate of 12%

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Over(under)provision in respect of prior
years

Effect of reversal of tax provision in
respect of prior years

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Others

Taxation credit for the year

12. Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:

Final dividend paid in respect of
2018: HK$0.057 per share (2018:
HK$0.057 per share in respect of
2017)

Interim dividend paid in respect of
2019: HK$0.028 per share (2018:
HK$0.026 per share in respect of
2018)

BRI E12%TE 2

I8 X (44,097) (56,264)
BB mE TR R X

LM (13,701) (9,641)
B BMs BAERTKA

X3 ERETS 11,518
AERMIEBE BB

FE - (2,225)
BEFEBEEH

(BETR) 63 (714)
BEOBTFERERE

zE 111,605 96,178
EBALERI AR 2B IE

518 1,779 21
HAth (11) (11)
F[E I8 E B 70,823 38,862

12. R E

FEAERB/DIKLZ

BB

B R20184F 2 R HAf% & :
FH0.0577% 7T
(20184F : 20175 2 K B

f% B & i%0.0577% T) 74,245
BIR2019F 2 R HAZ B ¢
FR%0.0287% 7T
(20184F : 20184 ~ /1 Hf
f% 8« &/%0.0267% JT) 35,871 33,866
109,502 108,111

The board of directors proposed the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.054 per share (2018: HK$0.057 per share)
for the year ended 31 March 2019 which is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

13.

14.

Earnings per Share 13. BRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable RABBEEANEBLHEREREN TR
to owners of the Company is based on the following data: BUATEIRAE:

Earnings 27
Earnings (profit for the year attributable FLEREARZFmME 2
to owners of the Company) for the B (RABHEEBA

purpose of basic earnings per share &AL 18 0% A1) 393,574

Number of shares [ gvig =]
Weighted average number of ordinary BEREAREFIME 2

shares in issue for the purpose of BT ERK
basic earnings per share hniEEH & enls il | 1,302,545,983

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as the Company RARAR TR W EFE ST BT
does not have any dilutive potential ordinary share for both METXE LBER WIEZ2IER
years. BB RF o

Investment Properties 14. REWE

Fair value AREHE

At 1 April 2017 20176 4H18 626,200
Increase in fair value NAEE LN 53,100
At 31 March 2018 R20184F3A31H 679,300
Increase in fair value NREEZEM 17,600
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3H31H 696,900
The investment properties represent completed investment REMEEBLRREFNETIRE
properties situated in Macau. M o
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 AEEIREMHENR2019F3HA31B K
March 2019 and 31 March 2018 have been arrived at on the 2018F3A3IHZ AR BEIBREI=E
basis of a valuation carried out on those dates by Memfus AERGTEMITERARJ(EAEEIL
Wong Surveyors Limited, an independent firm of qualified BAE BV EEREEYEMGEM
professional property valuers not connected to the Group, in TIRZEAHERESNEMESHR
accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards 2017 issued fin 2 & 7R 2 B 2 g 4 E %8 (2017
by Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. FHR)ETHEMEE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

14. Investment Properties (continued) 14. REWME(EZ

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, all investment M20194F3H31H K20184F3H31H -
properties were held for rental under operating leases. The FIBEREMEARBREHERAE
investment properties are held within a business model of the M AE - ZEFREME T B BRRE
Group whose business objective is to consume substantially mIEBB/EEFTN  HRREWEMR
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment BRALOBEBEN G AEEBRFEZA
properties over time, rather than through sale. In estimating SERERAFAR REFAYWEZR
the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of REER ZEVWEZESLRKER
the properties is their current use. There has been no change ERHEBERE - AFEM[RERMIL
to the valuation technique during the year. The valuation mEH - HEDNSBOHEUME S
was arrived at with reference to market evidence of recent MEBERZEERIL I RETR DR &
transaction prices for similar properties with adjustments to BREELHABMETE -
reflect different locations and conditions.
The following table gives information about how the fair THRREHENAEEZEREDENR
values of these investment properties are determined (in AEE(LCERMEANMERIN R
particular, the valuation technique and inputs used), as WMABEBINER  UWRBREBEAAE
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value EFffENH ASENTEREREEA
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the AEBEEFEETIENAABESR
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements (FIREFEIR) -
are observable.

Investment properties

held by the Group in the Sensitivity/relationship of

consolidated statement unobservable inputs to fair

of financial position Fair value Valuation techniques Significant value

AEBRGEHBMRRR  Fair value hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs HRE/FUBERAUE

BFENRENE ARERE AABESH FEENRERBAYE EZFUEZBAHE RAREENER

HK$'000
FTER
Commercial properties in - 696,900 Level 3 Direct comparison method Market unit rate, mainly taking  The higher the market unit rate
Macau (2018: 679,300) ERE with market unit rate as into account the location, used, the higher the fair value of
RRFINEENE (20184 : 679,300) the key input frontage and size, between the investment properties, and

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

e EBHERRBREA
BENERILEE

the comparables, which
ranged from HK$6,500 to
HK$30,000 (2018: HK$7,000
to HK$30,000) per square
foot
FEMRALRYE 2 HHNL

E - RRBARERENTS
ZE N FREFHTR6,500

7 7L 230,000 7T (20184
7,0007% 7T £30,0005% 7T

RARFEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

15. W% - HEBEREE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost or deemed cost BARRERK

At 1 April 2017 R2017E 4518 1,313,516 90,767 337,783 221367 270,470 10,652 3962 2248517
Additions #5 - - 25,531 15,568 5,135 1436 119 47789
Disposals/write-off e/ . = - (12,477) (2,469) (1,181) - (16,127
At 31 March 2018 2018434310 1,313,516 363,314 224,458 273,136 2,280,179
Additions #5 - 43,337 15,897 14,914 75,305
Disposals/write-off HE /W = (593) (908) (573) (2,527)
At 31 March 2019 201934318 1,313,516 406,058 239,447 287477 PRIVEL

Depreciation E

At 1 April 2017 R2017E 4518 264,515 19,290 259,869 168,055 198,617 7733 2,685 920,764
Provided for the year FENER 35,270 2,269 29767 21,754 18,656 1070 560 109,346
Eliminated on disposalfwrite-off % /4l 6% ¥ N = - (12,440) (2,275) (1,181) - (15,896)
At 31 March 2018 2018 3A31A 299,785 21,559 289,636 177,369 214,998 1,014,214
Provided for the year FENEME 35,270 2,269 32,328 15,878 15,789 103,205
Eliminated on disposalfwrite-off & /i 8 4134 = = (579) (901) (390) (2,323)
At 31 March 2019 20193431 335,055 23,828 321,385 192,346 230,397 1,115,096
Carrying amounts REE

At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31A 978,461 66,939 84,673 47101 57,080 1,237,861
At 31 March 2018 2018434310 1,013,731 69,208 73,678 47,089 58,138 3,285 836 1265965

iy #EMRERBAERE
BEOBUTFERTUFE:

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates per

annum:
Hotel properties and Over the estimated useful lives BIEMHE R fEETAIE A F E40F
buildings of 40 years or the unexpired BF SAEBEHE 2
terms of the relevant lease, K & W £ Bf
whichever is shorter (B & A %)
Leasehold improvements 10 — 20% MEWMEEE 10 - 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10 — 20% Fh - HER 10 - 20%
equipment By
Machinery 10 - 20% 1 28 10 - 20%
Motor vehicles 20% bt 20%
Others 20% HAth 20%

The hotel properties and buildings are located in Macau. As
the lease payments for land and building elements, other
than those included in note 16, cannot be allocated reliably,
the entire lease is classified as a finance lease and includes
in the carrying amount of the buildings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

16. Prepaid Lease Payments 16. R HERIE

Carrying value FREE
At beginning of the reporting period 2 B ) 480,603 496,314
Addition R 2,773 -
Released for the year FE AR (15,983) (15,711)
At end of the reporting period REHRBAR 467,393 480,603
Analysed for reporting purposes as MEBMEZ2O0MBT:
follows:
Non-current 3E7T B 451,413 464,900
Current ik 15,980 15,703
467,393 480,603
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise of leasehold AEBZENBEERBREM KRR
land in Macau. ZHE T o

17. Debt Instruments at Fair Value Through Other 17. ZBHt2HWHFEQIRE
Comprehensive Income BEzEKIA

Debt instruments at FVTOCI comprises debt FREMEEWEFEANE
instruments: Bz2EBITAEBEATER
T E:
— listed in Singapore/Hong Kong with fixed - RE g BB LW
interests at the rates ranging from 4.375% to & EFFENF4.375EE
6.750% per annum and maturity dates falling 6.750[F K& B HA B /T F
between 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 2019F 4 H1H £20204F
3HA31H
— listed in Singapore/Hong Kong with fixed - REME BB LT
interests at the rates ranging from 4.250% to [& 7E F 7 E 9t F4.2502
8.375% per annum and maturity dates falling £8.375E R EIEHIAN T
between 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 2020 4H1H £20214
3H31H 286,584
- listed in Singapore/Hong Kong with fixed -REME S EELET
interests at the rates ranging from 4.875% to & 7E F 7 9 F4.875F
6.950% per annum and maturity dates falling £6.950FE K E BN T
between 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 2021F 4 H1H £20224
3A31H 85,441
468,808
Analysed for reporting purposes as follows: HEHRMS 2OMBT -
Non-current ERB 372,025
Current mE 96,783

468,808
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/E

17. Debt Instruments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income (continued)
The amount is carried at fair value which is the quoted bid
price in active markets at the end of the reporting period.

Included in debt instruments at FVTOCI are the following

17. ZRHMEZHERETEAAE
BEzERITAGE)
BReENENERERZAAME
(BNS& BB T35 4R 1E) 511K -

BREMEmN AT EARBEZE

amounts denominated in currency other than functional

currency of the relevant group entity:

BIEBRTIZAREEER 2T

BEEBIINM BB ENS R

2019
HK$’000
FTERT
United States Dollar (“USD”) EE YA
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARBTARYD
18. Available-for-sale Investments 18. AIHERE
2018
HK$'000
F&T
AFS investments comprise debt instruments: AHHERERENTER
THE:
— listed in Singapore/Hong Kong/Cayman Islands - RSB HAERES
with fixed interests at the rates ranging from EH - BEFEMENTF
4.000% to 6.000% per annum and maturity 4.000/2 £6.000F & 2|
dates falling between 1 April 2018 to 31 B J2018F 4818 E
March 2019 20193 A31H 160,109
— listed in Singapore with fixed interests at the - RETINE £ - BEEFFHE
rates ranging from 5.000% to 5.750% per 71 F5.000E £5.750[F &
annum and maturity dates falling between 1 BIE BN F2019F4 /1R
April 2019 to 31 March 2020 FE2020F3H31H 45,971
- listed in Singapore/Hong Kong with fixed - RETME SEBE LT
interests at the rates ranging from 4.250% to & E F H X9t F4.250F
8.375% per annum and maturity dates falling Z8375E R EIBBE N T
between 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 2020 4 H1H £20214
3A31H 177,994
— listed in Hong Kong with fixed interest at the -RBEEBLT  BEFHE
rate of 5.200% per annum and maturity date 75200 KB HHB &
on 10 April 2021 20214 4A10A 39,000
423,074
Analysed for reporting purposes as follows: HEHRME 2B T -
Non-current ER B 262,965
Current ik 160,109
423,074
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

18. Available-for-sale Investments (continued)
The amount is carried at fair value which is the quoted bid
price in active markets at the end of the reporting period.

Included in AFS investments are the following amounts
denominated in currency other than functional currency of
the relevant group entity:

UsD ETT
RMB AR #&

18.

AEHERE(E
AHMEEDERERPRZAAEE
(B & BB 7935 ¥R B 51 R -

AHHERERRE NIIRABEHE
ERZEEBUINEBTED

TR

2018
HK$'000
TETT
360,893
62,181

19. Goodwill
As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounting to HK$110,960,000 (2018: HK$110,960,000) had
been allocated to the cash-generating unit relating to the
Group’s gaming operation.

During the year, the Group performed an impairment review
for goodwill of the Group’s gaming operation based on cash
flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets
for the next five years and after the fifth year, the projections
are extrapolated using a constant growth rate of 3% (2018:
3%) per annum for subsequent years. The recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit of the gaming operation
is determined from value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to revenue and direct costs during the year. The
forecast is discounted using a discount rate of 18% (2018:
16%). The discount rate was determined with reference to
weighted average cost of capital of similar companies in
the industry and adjusted for specific risks associated with
the Group’s gaming operation. The growth rates do not
exceed the long-term average industry growth forecasts.
Expected changes to revenue and direct costs are based
on past practices and the management’s expectations of
future changes in the market. As the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is higher than the carrying amount
of the cash-generating unit, the directors of the Company
consider no impairment loss is necessary for both years.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited H2R45HEEFR AT

19.

(GRS

M201943A31F  WE 2 REE A
110,960,0007% 7t (20184F : 110,960,000
BIL) ENEEEAEEERLEE
BEBzHAEEESMN -

RAFE AEEEREBERTZAR
TFVBEERAMIEZESRETE
BAREERAFRIZEBRFESTF3I%
(2018F :3%)Z H B EXRETHE
ZER RAEBEUKCEERZHE
BETRERN  -BELEEBES
EEBMZA KRB HIEFERER
HEmMET  FBAUEFRERZE
EHRBIVEFERNZIER  BEX
MBEFWARBEERAZELER -
2% 78 B $218% (20184F : 16%) 2 3T &
EFUAWR - EEDHL2BE AR
NEZ NEFHEREAMEE W IR
HALEEBYLEEERFRAZE TR
SHEITARE - WRERABBRPTFY
¥RERTEA - BARANREER
AZEEDBREBABIHAREEREY
TSR RELZTEHEMEE - HRE
CEAEMNZOKBSESRESE
SEMNZERE WMARTEZRE
B 4F 2 30 £ 4 B R R (B B 18 B
1 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

20. BB R H b fE WK

20. Trade and Other Receivables

B 5 & WK
HIBR - BB &

Trade receivables
Less: Impairment allowance

151,156 135,717
(53,126) (18,009)

Chips on hand £15
Other receivables and prepayments

H Al & W R K B A R

98,030 117,708
122,888 151,712
24,654 39,829

245,572 309,249

As at 31 March 2019, trade receivables comprise receivables
from contracts with customers and lease receivables
of HK$94,462,000 (1 April 2018: HK$112,634,000) and
HK$3,568,000 (1 April 2018: HK$5,074,000) respectively.

The Group normally allows credit periods of up to 60 days
to its customers, except for certain credit worthy customers
with long term relationship and stable repayment patterns,
where the credit periods are extended to a longer period.
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of
impairment allowance) based on the date of credit granted
or the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set
out below:

0 - 30 days 0Z30H
31 — 60 days 31260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
91 — 180 days 912180H
Over 180 days 180H M £

MR2019F3A31H EH5 KA B IE
RERF AR RIE R E EW R
18 - 5 Bl A94,462,0005% 7T (201844 A
18 : 112,634,000/% 7T ) % 3,568,000/ 7T
(201844 A 18 : 5,074,000/ 7T) °

AEE—RGETHEFREGORZ(E
EM EETABRIBEAREEE
RRANEEREEF  KEZEEH
HrAgERE —BREEHE - U TH
AEERERPREELEEARK
LEAH27 2 E 5 RUK (R RE
BER®R) 2R DT

95,489
4,776
595
2,504
14,344

117,708

Chips on hand represent chips issued by a gaming
concessionaire in Macau which can be exchanged into their
cash amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

20. EFREMEKRKRE)

20. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of trade
receivables did not have debtors which were past due.
Included in the trade receivable balances were debtor
balances of HK$17,443,000 that would otherwise had been
past due had the terms not been renegotiated and extended.
The Group’s management closely monitored the credit quality
of debtors and considered them to be of a good credit quality
due to good repayment records of these debtors.

Included in the impairment allowance are individually
impaired trade receivables from individual gaming patrons
with an aggregate balance of HK$53,126,000 (2018:
HK$18,009,000) since the management considered the
prolonged outstanding balances from these individual
gaming patrons were in doubt. As at 31 March 2019,
the trade receivables from individual gaming patrons,
net of impairment allowance of HK$53,126,000 (2018:
HK$18,009,000), amounted to HK$14,840,000 (2018:
HK$40,170,000). The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

R2018F3A31H * EFZENAR 2RE
BEYERKERECHES - EFEUK
45 B B FE JE Uk BR FX17,443,00078 JT
MTEFE REBEEGK  ZEX
Higegail AEEEEEFRYER
BERAZEEEZ  UREBEHNRZSE
ATZEBERERT  FIABABR
FEEE X -

BERGEREREEANBEREREZ
EREREBECESREKKBHEE
53,126,000/ 7T (20184 : 18,009,000
B DTAERBRAZEEMNBY
EREzREPAEBESRBERETREERE
5ef - W20194F3A318 - KA AR E
CRPZBSEWRZ R REREE
53,126,000/ 7T (20184 : 18,009,000
7 JT)) /14,840,000 7T (20184 :
40,170,000870) - AEEBERZE
BRI AT KSR -

Movement in the impairment allowance WERES B
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2017 M2017% 4818 31,009
Write-off T 58 (13,000)
At 31 March 2018 72018 3H31H 18,009

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out
in note 32(b).
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HZE2019F3A31HILFE E5 L H
1t B UG ZX 2 R (B B 2 R IE SO BT A
32(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/E

21.

Pledged Bank Deposits/Short-term Bank

Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

As at 31 March 2019, pledged bank deposits comprise
(i) a deposit of HK$43,700,000 (2018: Nil) pledged to a
bank to secure a bank facility granted to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, details of which has been set
out in note 25(b) and (i) a deposit of HK$340,000 (2018:
HK$334,000) pledged to a bank to secure for the use of
ferry ticket equipment provided by a third party to the Group,
respectively. The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest
rates which range from 2.20% to 2.40% (2018: at fixed
interest rate of 1.40%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2019, short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity over 3 months carry interest at fixed interest
rates which range from 2.30% to 2.70% (2018: 1.20% to
1.55%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and bank deposits with an original maturity of 3 months or
less, and carry interests at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.01% to 3.05% (2018: 0.01% to 3.30%) per
annum.

Included in bank balances are the following amounts
denominated in currency other than functional currency of
the relevant group entities:

XL
AR

usD
RMB

21.

BEARTER EHETE
ROBITEGRREAES
M2019F3A31H ' B R ITF X
BESBNNHEERF—HERITZER
43,700,000 7T (20184F : &) - {£ /&
ARE—EE2ENBRAREREITR
BEZEE - HFBEHRKE25(0) A
R (i B F — R 17 2 F 3.340,000
7 7T (20184F : 334,000/8 7T) © {EAMHE
B—R2F - REAEEFARES
BT - DEBRTEIIRETE
FHENF2.20E £2.40E (20184 :
BEFEFFR140E)HE -

M2019F3A31H » R F|EIH A31E A
A2 REBRTERIREEFEMEN
T2.30[E £2.70E (2018F : 1.202 =
1.55[E)5H R

BITEREBESREAKSEREZE
& RREIEBE A3E A AT « RIBT
™5 FHMENF0.01E E3.052 (2018
F:001E £2330B) it B 2R 1TF

e
A °

RITEBRBERE T REESEER
NEEEE AN BB ENS R

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT TR
8,048
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

22.

23.

Trade and Other Payables 22, ESRHMEMNK

Trade payables =) ANEN 12,068 14,997
Chips in custody and deposits from REBEERPZES R

gaming patrons Ve 25,422 56,878
Construction payables and accruals ENIEREREGTER 4,688 11,386
Other payables and accruals HihENRLEGTER 87,027 83,184
Payable for acquisition of AFS WHEAHEHERE ZEN

investments I8 = 156,741
Accrued staff costs JEET B TR A 45179 38,114
Short-term advance 52 B #A 3R 18,000 18,000

192,384 379,300

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on UTREAEERZRMRIEZEZEAH
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out 2IzESRERNRZER DT
below:

0£30H

0 — 30 days

31 — 60 days 31260H 5,696
61 — 90 days 61290H 15
91 — 180 days 912180H 62
Over 180 days 1808 A E 41
14,997
Other payables and accruals mainly include accrued HtWENAEEFERIERERY
commission expenses in gaming operation, other accrued X¥Be R HEEER  EMEER
expenses and other deposits. MEMESE -
Amounts Due to Fellow Subsidiaries 23. XEZAME AR RE
The amounts are due to subsidiaries of Emperor International, FERERREZHABRETHEAR
which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZFEIE - TEER RERAREX
demand. BiE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

24,

25.

Amounts Due to Non-controlling Interests of
a Subsidiary

The amounts represent unsecured and interest-free
shareholder’s loans due to non-controlling interests of Luck
United. In accordance with the contractual terms of the
shareholders’ agreements, the amounts are to be repaid from
surplus fund, which represents cash available in Luck United
and its subsidiaries, after paying all operating expenses and
payables, including but not limited to bank loans and third
party loans which are due for repayment together with the
accrued interest.

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the management
of Luck United determined that Luck United had adequate
available surplus fund for the repayment of all principal
amounts outstanding to its shareholders. Accordingly, the
amounts are shown as current liabilities as at 31 March 2019
and 31 March 2018.

Pledge of Assets

(@) As at 31 March 2019, certain assets of the Group
were pledged to banks to secure for banking facilities
granted by the banks to the Group. The carrying values
of these assets at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:

Hotel properties B TE 4 5
Investment properties REMZE
Prepaid lease payments AT ERIB
Others (Note) H At (A7 L)

24,

25.

IR — I 2 0 2 3 2 R
;IE

ZZEFIEFE K Luck United 2 IE # f%
BEHERERCEREER - RIE
BREBEZALIER  ZEREHN
BHE2EE - B%HE £ 46 Luck
United R Eff B R R T A K&
AXREMKEFBEETRRIEHE
BZRTERERFE=HEFERE
FMB)BZAIBAERSD -

2019 3A318 &2018E3A31H -
Luck United & I & 32 & Luck United
HERHANYRABESEERER
RZFBEARE - Bt - ZRIER2019
F3A31H &2018F3A31B % R &
FEE-

BEEEH
(a) M20199F3A31H K&EEE T
EECHEBTRIT EARTT

BFAEEZRITRE 2 KR -
REMAK - RBEEENEAME
mF :

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH& T FHBT
978,461 1,013,731
696,900 679,300
467,393 480,603
69,376 88,354
2,212,130 2,261,088

Note: Others represent floating charges over certain other assets
of the Group including principally property, plant and
equipment (other than hotel properties), inventories, trade
and other receivables and bank balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

25. Pledge of Assets (continued)

(b) The Group had a bank deposit of HK$43,700,000
(2018: Nil) pledged to a bank to secure a bank
facility granted to a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. The bank facility represents a bank
guarantee amounting to MOP45,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$43,689,000 for the period from 4 June 2018 to 31
March 2020, which is made in favour of Sociedade de
Jogos de Macau, S.A. (“SJM”) for the Group’s fulfilment
of all its obligations, in particular for reimbursement
by the Group to SJM of the employee’s salaries
and benefits for those gaming operation employees
employed by SUM who work for the casino where the
Group provides services to SUM, as stipulated under a
service agreement entered into between SJM and the
Group.

() The Group also had a bank deposit of HK$340,000
(2018: HK$334,000) pledged to a bank to secure for
the use of ferry ticket equipment provided by a third
party to the Group.

26. Deferred Taxation
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the year:

25. EERTF(E

(b)

AN £ @ K $#043,700,000% T
(20184 | | IR{TF KT — MR
T 1EEARRE—H2ENBR
RIERIRITRE 2T - ZIBIT
§h & $545,000,0002 F9 7t (B &
743,689,000 JT) iR 17 & 1R
HiMR £20184 6 H4H £ 202043
A318 @ WBFAEBEROHERA
AIMTREBDAZZA UREAX
SERTEE2HEML LERK
EEABREBETFEMNEEAZE
HEBREBZEEFMEER -
ZERERAEERRGIZE
R 2 IR4E 5 T1E - FBEBEER
FORTEEARNEE TR 2 R

R

AN £ E 78 K 340,000 T
(20184F : 334,000 7T) R 1T 1%
RF—MRIT EB—RE=ZH
REASEFAMNZEEHK 2
A -

26. iE fiE B H
M ARERE®E Y T EEEHE (R
B EEREWNED

At 1 April 2017 R2017F4A1H
Credit (charge) to profit or loss RERFAGIER)
At 31 March 2018 ©®201843A31H
(Charge) credit to profit or loss RE & (18R A
At 31 March 2019 #201943A31H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

26. IEEBIE(E)

26. Deferred Taxation (continued)

Note: The Macau tax authority granted a concessionary deduction Hat: BPIBEEPMIRADERRIMGE
to Grand Emperor Entertainment & Hotel (Macau) Limited Mk ZzEZEIEZERBRARHR
(‘Grand Emperor Entertainment’), an indirect non-wholly ERLHECRPDBRABI(EE
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Macau, to REBFEFRMDET -—EHEERHE
claim deduction of depreciation allowance for certain of its BE - BEETWE - *ﬁéﬁ%&?&‘{%
property, plant and equipment for tax purpose in an accelerated ZTEEAERAFEHBE AR
pattern over a period which is half of the expected useful lives AEMMEmME2ME BER
of the property, plant and equipment and such a concession BRE2HERTE BEHRESRE
ended on 31 December 2013. Out of the deferred tax liability R2013F 12 A31H & 1F - RIELEF
of HK$25,888,000 (2018: HK$24,746,000), an amount of 1H B 525,888,000/ JT (20184 :
HK$22,398,000 (2018: HK$22,348,000) has been recognised in 24.746,000870) % - B BEES
respect of the accelerated tax depreciation of those property, oW HERZBZMRFIE
plant and equipment related to the concession. I E #E3222,398,000/8 7T (20184 ©

22,348,000/ 7T) °

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement H2INGEPBRRAEME - BLEMR

of financial position, deferred tax assets and liabilities have BHEEKBEMRRA-—SEERFEL

been offset for the temporary differences arising from the Z%ﬁE%%EEEﬁE%

same group entity.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had unused tax losses of R2019%F3A31E A& BH A K &

HK$122,469,000 (2018: HK$121,437,000) available for offset
against future profits. Deferred tax asset is recognised in
respect of HK$18,306,000 (2018: HK$2,451,000) of such loss.
No deferred tax asset is recognised in respect of the remaining
tax losses of HK$104,163,000 (2018: HK$118,986,000) due
to unpredictability of future profit streams. The Group’s
unrecognised tax losses might be carried forward indefinitely,
except for an amount of HK$43,849,000 (2018: HK$58,672,000)
which will expire in 3 years from the year of assessment.

27. Share Capital

27.

A T T8 & 122,469,000 7T (2018
F :121,437,0007%8 Ju) Al 4 7 K 85 &
RomH o HEhiz B EP18,306,ooo
7B T (20184 : 2,451,000 7T) &
wu%?ﬁk%ﬂlﬁﬁg % *X/ﬁl
R kR 2 A 0] 8 B ﬁ%sz
15 B 18104,163,000/% JT (20184 :
118,986,000/ j0) I MR B E LT
HEE - AEBZRERHEEREY
ERPAE HETIHFERIFR
B HA 2 3 T843,849,000% 7T (20184 :
58,672,000/ 7T) BR 4h o

IR 2

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each & % E {20.0001% 7T 2
T E AR
Authorised: ERE
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 M20176F 4718 -
and 31 March 2019 2018 3HA31H &
2019 3A31H 2,000,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITIWHA T -
At 1 April 2017 and R20175 4818 &
31 March 2018 2018 3A31H 1,302,545,983
Share repurchased and cancelled FEACERE &TiE
during the year (Note) 2 B (B &%) (43,720,000)
At 31 March 2019 R20194F3H31H 1,258,825,983
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

27. Share Capital (continued)

28.

Note: During the vyear ended 31
repurchased its own shares from the market in total of 43,720,000
shares at an aggregate consideration of HK$72,611,000
(including the relevant transaction costs and expenses of
HK$234,000). The average price of the repurchased shares
was HK$1.655 per share. These repurchased shares had been
cancelled at the end of the reporting period.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share

Option Scheme”) on 15 August 2013.

The major

summarised as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme (a)
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future developments

(b)

(c)

(d)

and expansion of the Group.

Eligibility

Eligible participants include employees (whether full
time or part time employee, including non-executive
director) and such other eligible participants.

(i)

(ii)

Total number of shares available for issue under ()
the Share Option Scheme as at 12 June 2019 (i.e.
the date of this report): 129,254,598 shares.

Percentage of the issued shares that it represents (ii)

as at 12 June 2019: 10.27%.

March 2019, the Company

terms of the Share Option Scheme are

27. BRA& (&)

Krat: # Z201949F3F31H It F E - K
ARRTEHEERA SR MHER
43,720,0000% f&% 7+ 2 K B A
72,611,000 T (B EMRBE X S K A
K B8 234,000 7T) » © 8 B % 17
KISEHE AEI1.6558TT - %50
BRBRMDNREFRBARELTH -

28. B IR RESTE
RARIR2013FE8AI5HE M —1EEL
EEtE((BRESTED -

BREFEZ ETEGRFIMA T

BRESEZE®W
BAKEERS - REBLABE
ABZ2EEURKLAERZ R
KR NIER

(b) B
FER2EEREREBE(EWmE
BeRBESRS  BRIFNTES)
LRZEHMAERZ2RE -

1B I B & T 8 102019
FeR12H (B A ¥k & H HY)
A FRETZRMDBEE:
129,254,598 1% -

R2019F6 A12H H 1 2 3
TR Z2EDE 10.27% °

Maximum entitlement of each eligible (d) BRESEBETSEEERK
participant under the Share Option Scheme SHEEMERER LR
(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in () PFRIEERTHE - TAIE

any 12-month period unless approved by the

shareholders; and

options granted to substantial shareholders or (i)
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding
the higher of 0.1% of the shares in issue and
with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be

approved by the shareholders.

T 1218 A 8 & A 158
BEBITBRMNZ1% &

NI —Fz2AmEERK
REBIULIFATESFHRK
EXEZHBEBARLEZE
kg EERASEITRNZ
0.1% K& {E18 #8 85,000,000
B IR IRRHLE

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited H2R45HEEFR AT
Annual Report 2018/2019 F i




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/E

28. Share Option Scheme (continued)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

Period within which the shares must be

taken up under an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the board of directors but in any
event not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be

held before it can be exercised
No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
board of directors.

(iy  Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant; and

(iii)  Period within which loans for such purposes of the

payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the Board and will
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price
of the share on the date of grant; (b) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The remaining life of the Share Option

Scheme
Approximately 5 years (expiring on 14 August 2023).

No option has been granted since the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

29.

30.

31.

Legal Reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the
Macau Special Administrative Region, certain subsidiaries of
the Company are required to set aside 25% of their profit for
the year to a legal reserve until the legal reserve has reached
50% of their registered capital. No appropriation was made
in both years as the legal reserve of those subsidiaries have
already reached 50% of their respective registered capital.

Non-controlling Interests

Included in non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2019
was a deemed contribution by non-controlling interests of
HK$56,005,000 (2018: HK$112,009,000) on certain interest-
free loans from the non-controlling interests of a subsidiary
which were contributed in proportion to their shareholdings.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the amounts due to non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary as disclosed in note 24, net of cash and
cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits
and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the debt
raising.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

32. Financial Instruments 32. €@ I A
(@ €MIEZER

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets ctREE

Amortised cost/Loans and BENAN BRRE
receivables: WK
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& H b & W
Pledged bank deposits B IRITIER
Short-term bank deposits HERITHER
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERS
Debt instruments at FVTOCI: EREMEEKS
AEAREBEZ
BEFLTA:
Listed debt securities ITMEBES
AFS investments: AHERE:
Listed debt securities ITTmEBES
Financial liabilities cmEaE
Amortised cost: BOE K AN
Trade and other payables B 5 I H th JE - 5k
Amounts due to fellow YEESL GRS
subsidiaries
Amounts due to non-controlling R—HEMBARZ
interests of a subsidiary FE 1 AR #E 2= IR

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed in
above table. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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(b)

230,716 298,536
44,040 334
300,662 475,516
2,638,143 3,098,510

3,213,561 3,872,896

468,808 B

= 423,074
3,682,369 4,295,970
100,873 289,364
3,930 3,283
46,200 107,600
151,003 400,247

MHEBEEREREE

AEBZIZERTAHIRN
R -ZEERIAZHBER
EEBMEARE - FHEZES
BT A Z R ke TSR RN
TR FERERNEMGER
R EERREARSHE SR
& o BLANADR E L F AR 2 R
ENTX - EEEHZERRE
TERMER  BEAREES
MEZHTABITEE 2B -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

32. 2@MIAE)
(b) HHKEREERERBEK

32. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued) (%)
Market risk 5 B
Foreign currency risk S e

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Several
subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, but the management considers
the amount of foreign currency sales and purchases
is insignificant. The management considers the Group
does not expose to significant foreign currency risk in
relation to transactions denominated in Macau Pataca
(“MOP”) and USD. Exposures on balances which
are denominated in MOP and USD in group entities
with HK$ as functional currency are not considered
significant as MOP is pegged to HK$ which is also
in effect pegged to USD under the pegged exchange
system in Hong Kong.

The Group has certain bank balances which are
denominated in RMB (being currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities)
amounting to HK$2,776,000 (2018: HK$8,048,000). As
at 31 March 2019, the debt instruments at FVTOCI
(2018: AFS investments) of the Group, which are
denominated in RMB, amounted to HK$71,151,000
(2018: HK$62,181,000). The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

32. Financial Instruments (continueqd) .ERMIAE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEEMEERREREE

policies (continueqd) (&)
Market risk (continued) 5 E B (E)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SN e (A8 )

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 5% (2018: 5%) in
exchange rate of RMB against HK$, while all other
variables are held constant. 5% (2018: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to the key management personnel and
represents the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2018: 5%) change in foreign currency
rate. For a 5% (2018: 5%) strengthening in RMB against
HKS$, the Group’s profit for the year would be increased
by HK$3,696,000 (2018: HK$3,511,000). If RMB had
been weakened against HK$ in an opposite magnitude
and all other variables were held constant, the potential
effect on the results would be equal and opposite.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent
foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and bank deposits included in
bank balances, debt instruments at FVTOCI (2018: AFS
investments). The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to its variable-rate bank
balances. The Group currently does not have policy
on cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the
need arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

32. Financial Instruments (continueqd) 32. e@MIA(E)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERABREERERBKE
policies (continued) (&)
Market risk (continued) %5 e (&)
Interest rate risk (continued) Tl & 7 e (#8)
The Group’s sensitivity to fair value interest rate risk AEBZAREBBEMNERER &
has been determined based on the exposure to interest REDBEBEESRAR 2 EBEAM
rate for those fixed-rate debt instruments at FVTOCI ZHK=EFEAABEZIELSRE
(2018: AFS investments) at the end of each reporting BILA(2018F A HERE)
period. For the year ended 31 March 2019, if interest ZHAERBERMETE o BLE2019F
rates had been 100 basis points (2018: 100 basis SABMBILEFE  iWFlE E FH sk
points) higher or lower and all other variables were held T F&1001E £ 25 (20184 : 1001E
constant, the Group’s investments revaluation reserve EE)MMABAEMAIZFREEZL R
would decrease or increase by HK$6,170,000 (2018: T AEEZIREEHHEER
HK$6,917,000), as a result of the changes in the fair AEdBEMmEzERGETEAN
value of fixed-rate debt instruments at FVTOCI (2018: BEZTEEEBKIACOI8HF
AFS investments). AIHEERE)NAABEES
& 2> 2k 1 hN6,170,0007% 7T (2018
% 6,917,000 7T) °
The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk AEBZRERENERR 2K
has been determined based on the exposure to interest REDIREBEEHRAR 2 IFERTT
rate for those variable-rate bank balances at the end R 2 M X E e & E A
of the reporting period and management’s assessment EENEEEH o EMETE - I
of the reasonably possible change in the interest rate BEEEEZHNEGFFIEE -
assuming that it took place at the beginning of each BEREFEARFENE -
year and was held constant throughout the respective
year.
If interest rate for the variable-rate bank balances had fin )2 BIRITEER 2 FIE L FA101E
been 10 basis points (2018: 10 basis points) higher 2 (20184 - 10 E2h) - HAth
and all other variables were held constant, the potential FrEEERIRETE - FEmH
effect on profit for the year is as follows: ZEBEERZERIT
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Increase in profit for the year 12 % F) 1L hn
— Variable-rate bank balances - FEAERRITHE R 414

If interest rates had been lower in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on the results would be equal and
opposite.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

32. Financial Instruments (continueqd) 32. R ITAE)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERAKMEEREREE
policies (continueqd) (&)
Market risk (continued) 5 E B (E)
Other price risk H it 1B 15 /7 [

For debt instruments at FVTOCI (2018: AFS
investments), the management monitors market price
exposure and will consider hedging significant market
price exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to other price risk on debt
instruments at FVTOCI (2018: AFS investments) at the
end of the reporting period. If the market bid price on
such listed debt securities had been 5% (2018: 5%)
higher or lower, the potential effect on investments
revaluation reserve would increase or decrease by
HK$23,440,000 (2018: HK$21,154,000) arising from the
debt instruments at FVTOCI (2018: AFS investments).

Credit risk management and impairment

assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge obligations by the counterparties at the end
of reporting period are arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2018: incurred loss
model) on trade balances individually. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/Z

32. Financial Instruments (continued) . E®mIAE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERABREERERBKE

policies (continued)
Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2019, lifetime ECL

(#)
= B /7 B B R B E 14 ()

%312019&3)%315 FE - #

of HK$35,117,000 for trade receivables from individual REBERRE THEINEBER
gaming patrons with an aggregate gross carrying FEERE - E&EM@ E)Eﬁ@
amount of HK$66,027,000 is recognised as the EEETE%%OZ?,OOO/%EE’JT%

management considered certain individual gaming
patrons are credit-impaired. The management has also
assessed all available forward looking information,
including but not limited to the economic outlook and
subsequent settlement of these customers. As at 31
March 2019, impairment allowance with an aggregate
balance of HK$53,126,000 represents individually credit-
impaired trade receivables from individual gaming
patrons as the management considered the outstanding
balances from these gaming patrons were uncollectible.

Lifetime ECL for the remaining trade receivables with
an aggregate gross carrying amount of HK$85,129,000
was insignificant and thus was not provided due to the
low probability of default of those debtors based on
historical credit loss experience. The management has
also assessed all available forward looking information,
including but not limited to the economic outlook of
Macau and subsequent settlement of these customers,
and concluded that the credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding trade receivables is insignificant.

The following table shows the movements in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for credit-impaired trade

EWRER2HEREEEIE
35,117,000 7t - B E N E 7T
HEE M ERMATEEER 8
HEETRENEEBEIENZERF
HEZMEDRIBER - BR20194F 34
318 - é;#53,126,ooo;‘%ﬁ2ﬁ
EREESR I AEBEERE
28R E)fmf’i%ﬁéuﬁzm &8
@wb\ﬁuz—r‘ré gﬁm*iﬂ%&
Egr N a g m o

1 7 BR [ 42 {8 /385,129,0007# 7T
WEHRESEWR 22 BHEH
EEBEBYTEKR - B &
R-UHBARBEBTEEEIAE
RE - ZEEBAENZARL
RIK - BEENDTEAEAE
Be R EER - BFEETRR
BFINGEBEAIIRRZEEFER
E’JEW\%/R WL\EKEIZ;E{E
j(éf%rqﬁl X2 EERRIYTE

TERFIREFHHACHEAN
1I%|JT$7?§¥)51*,‘\}}%@”’%%14&

receivables from individual gaming patrons under the FHEHEREEBEZS:
simplified approach:
Lifetime ECL
(credit-
impaired)
2 H
FEEBE
(EERE)
HK$’000
FTERT
At 1 April 2018 R2018%F 4418
Change due to financial instruments recognised 2018 418 ## R
at 1 April 2018: irﬂliﬁﬁ?iﬁ’]“ :
— impairment losses recognised -BRBEEE
New financial assets originated during the year FERELXWNH S RMEE
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3H31H

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited H2R45HEEFR AT
Annual Report 2018/2019 F i




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &.Z22019F3H31H1FF/Z

32. Financial Instruments (continueqd) 32. R ITAE)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of banking facilities and ensures
compliance with loan covenants, if any.
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERAKMEEREREE
policies (continueqd) (&)
Credit risk management and impairment EEREREZERBEFGE)
assessment (continued)
Note: The trade receivables with gross carrying amount of it - Eé2018¢4ﬂ1ﬁfﬁiﬁm%@ﬂﬁﬁ
HK$3,229,000 which were recognised as at 1 April 2018 {63,229,000/% 7T 2 & 5 IE K
had been defaulted and transferred to credit-impaired MIAR2019F3A31HE R
as at 31 March 2019. The trade receivables with gross TEEER E_Eﬁf'! cRFE
carrying amount of HK$31,888,000 which were new WEEE"J%@@%EW%EE
financial assets originated during the year had been E{E31,888,000 1T 2 E 5 &
defaulted and transferred to credit-impaired as at 31 HK?KIEEQZOW%GHNEIE#@
March 2019. Kﬂ%?ﬁ§1gg/ﬁﬁ ©
For the pledged bank deposits, short-term bank SEEMRITHER - MHRITT
deposits and bank balances, impairment allowance %’(&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%\ﬁ/ﬁ%; ﬁﬁﬁéﬁl
was insignificant and thus was not provided since the Tﬁi Jiéﬂfﬁﬁj‘ip ° \JHZ\EEEQ
management considers the probability of default is EEER A ST %;}Zﬁ)ﬁ}ﬁ(‘ﬁa
negligible as such deposits are placed in banks with K%—H%f\a_%%&%% i %E%%f\
high credit ratings assigned by international credit- R AR 2 SRAT - BT ) 2 Pl RE1E
rating agencies, and have low credit risk. MARBAREERBERIE -
For the other receivables including chips on hand, REMELEK(BREH MS -
impairment allowance was insignificant and thus was WEREBLTEA - LI #E5t
not provided since the management considers the 1’ BN ERERRNEY
probability of default is minimal after assessing the FHOHBESREERNRE
counterparties’ financial background and creditability. RBENZ AR MERE -
For the debt instruments at FVTOCI (2018: AFS EBEMEHKRGAERE
investments), the Group only invests in debt securities B2 EHITA (20184 : AJ#tHE
with low credit risk. The Group’s debt instruments at BRE)MS AKEHERERFE
FVTOCI (2018: AFS investments) are all listed bonds RBREREEBETR -KAEBEZ
that are graded in the high credit ratings among rating BREMEERSFEQEE
agencies and therefore are considered to be low credit Z1§ﬁlﬂ(2918¢ : Efjﬁﬂﬂfﬁ_%
risk investments. During the year ended 31 March B)EREGIARRBIRSE
2019, impairment allowance was insignificant and thus Bz tWmES - AR SR
was not provided since the management considers the BEERRKRE - HE2019F3
probability of default is minimal. A3BLISE  BERELTE
AN A ERE - LBARER
ERABEBHZAIEMEHRE -
B E L EE

REERBDECERE  KNEE
ERLAERASIRSEEYR
RERERRIERZKF - AR
NAREE 2 REMTFE D LRE
RenBRBTE BRER
RRTEEZERB R R #ER
HeatEERH(WAE) -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

32. M ITAZ
(b) HHKEREERERBEK

32. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, based on the existing levels
of bank balances and the existing banking facilities
available, the Group will be able to meet its future
cash flow requirements. Accordingly, the management
considers that the Group’s liquidity risk is minimal.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of HK$520,000,000 (2018:
HK$100,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities that will
result in cash outflow. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group

(4&)

TEEZERE(E)
R2019F3A31H @ B IF R 174
BRIBAEKFERIRA A HE AR
TEEREE AEEBEHARR
ERgBEREF K - Bt ' &
BEERBASENTRBHE SR
BE K -

MR2019F3/31H » KAEE Z 1]
HERERSHAEITEEBRE
/£520,000,000/8 T (20184 :
100,000,000/ Jt) °

TRE G EHRAEER SR
ZEBMARZHTHOERHAF
1B bk RIDREANEEAGEEE
BzRFEMZEBAE 2R
RASREMRE  ZRERER

EMEBZAE °

can be required to pay. The table includes principal
cash flows.

B E T R E R

Liquidity and interest risk tables

2019 2019

Trade and other payables B9 K E A R 100,873 100,873 100,873
Amounts due to fellow REZWBARFIER

subsidiaries 3,930 3,930 3,930
Amounts due to non-controlling R —FI B AR Z

interests of a subsidiary FERERRE 46,200 46,200 46,200

151,003 151,003 151,003

2018 20184
Trade and other payables B9 K E A K N 289,364 289,364 289,364
Amounts due to fellow REZMBARFIE

subsidiaries = 3,283 3,283 3,283

Amounts due to non-controlling R—RIM B AR Z
interests of a subsidiary RS A - 107,600 107,600 107,600

400,247 400,247 400,247

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 32 R4EEGRA 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

32. @M I A(E)
(c) eMIBEQAAEENE

32. Financial Instruments (continued)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments

The fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.

Other than disclosed above, the fair values of other
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of all other financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period approximate their corresponding fair
values.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

BB BEEGRR MR LR R
FMEEENERMEENRE
ETV2EMBMEEABETE

FREXHEEES  Htbe@E
EkeRBEZAREBEIRE
AR RBEREITNIR
EEBAETE -

ARAEERR NEEZRY
R REHBRAANRZ A A
TREEMEMBEZREE
HEMBEAREBERS -

AEBETEREERZRY
RARREBEFE - TREHRE
BB EXEMEEARE
B2 & # (%52 P A E Rl
N A7) -

BREEHEEURIABEAEZ
AEBEREEZANER

Debt instruments at 468,808 - Level 1 Quoted bid prices in ~ N/A N/A
FVTOCI F1R an active market TEA i A
BREMPERGE ERMBEARE
AABEZEKIA
AFS investments = 423,074 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in ~ NJA N/A
AHHERSE 21 an active market @R TER
ERTSEARE

PP M 4 - AR R E AR B
Z B o

There were no transfers between Level 1 and other
Levels during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3H31H 1 F/Z

33. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from 33. MMEEBFELEZEEYHE

Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRANAEEREESIELENE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and B2 ERFAeRFReEDH - @
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities BEBMEANBENEERERE
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will IAKRREREGHBERNEAERLEZE
be classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash ReEMERPIEARETHMESE
flows from financing activities. WBESRENEE -

At 1 April 2017 R2017F4A1H 469,800 - 3,691 120,800 594,291
Dividends declared (note 12) BEERBREMH12) - 108,111 - - 108,111
Interest accrued (note 8) JESTRI 8.(f7i28) - - 12,209 - 12,209
Financing net cash outflow BERSRLFE (469,800) (108,111) (15,900) (13,200) (607,011)
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H — 107,600 107,600
Dividends declared (note 12) BERBRE(HZ12) 109,502 - 109,502
Financing net cash outflow BERSRLFE (109,502) (61,400)  (170,902)

At 31 March 2019 F2019%E331H 46,200 46,200

34. Capital Commitments

Contracted for but not provided in the FL¥% - 2N REDE]
consolidated financial statements, HERREET B RE
net of amounts paid, in respect of FEEMHBRENESE)
property, plant and equipment

3177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

35. Operating Lease Commitments 35. MEHEAIE
The Group as lessee rEBERAEEA

Operating lease rentals paid and FEARAEDEETR
payable for the year in respect of ERzKEEHERS

rented premises 2,406
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RERBAR AEEHEREHEED
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- EZTUREKEREARBREIN
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises REBEESE 2 AE EEEINH

which fall due as follows: M

Within one year 1 A
In the second to forth year inclusive  FE2EF4F (BREEREMT

ER) 1,090
4,360
The leases were negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 4 ERAMEDNKERRGE BN F1E
years (2018: 1 to 2 years) and the rentals are pre-determined 4F (2018F 1ZE2F) T E - Ml €
and fixed. NEAETERREEERE -
The Group as lessor AEBEEREBEA

Operating lease rentals received and FERFE K ZILEY
receivable for the year in respect of ¥cWkER o EER
completed investment properties EWlS

22,148
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

35, REHERIEZ

35. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)

The Group as lessor (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants to receive the following future minimum lease
payments in respect of premises in the completed investment
properties in Macau, which fall due as follows:

1R

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

£RA)

F2EFSF (BREEMF

TEBEERHBAGE)
REBRBPR AEEDEBEPTA
AFRFIEERZREMER AR
RNz &EBEESHE  HAB
BT

20,764

17,687

38,351

Certain premises in the Group’s completed investment
properties have committed tenants for the tenancy ranging
from 2 to 5.5 years (2018: 2 to 5.5 years) and the rentals are
pre-determined and fixed.

As 31 March 2019, operating lease rental committed from related
parties amounted to HK$14,170,000 (2018: HK$4,294,000)
which fall due as follows:

Within one year 1F A
In the second to fifth year inclusive F2EFESF (BIEEREME
£EA)

AEEEERNZEREMERNELETY
¥EEBFEEAE  HEN F2E55F
(2018F : 2&E55F) N E - MB &)
EAEERAEESE -

MR2019F3A31H » B & 7 7B & E /W
KL EM S A14,170,0005 7T (2018
F 14,294,000 70) - EBEB S THIN
T

4,294
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

36. Related Party Transactions
During the year, the Group had the following significant
transactions with related parties:

(a)

Advertising fee to a related m—EEEQRXZN
company BEE

Brokerage fee to a related company [a— 8B E QA 2+

R =

Commission to Dr. Albert Yeung in  HBE L (AKEE
his capacity as a patron of the EEBERFZ2HM)
Group’s VIP room SRNEA

Professional service fee to a related [/ — [ B E QA 2+
company EXRGER

Purchase of property, plant and

equipment and merchandising MEBAREEYE -
goods from related companies MEREBEREMR
and a fellow subsidiary
Reimbursement of administrative BRNRRKMEARQA
expenses to fellow subsidiaries FIZ 2 1TBAX
Rental income from a related M) — [ B 38 2 A R
company HEWA
Secretarial fee to a related company A — & B8 & A &) ST+
W E RS &

36.

REEAR R —EEFR

RELTRXS
() WA A E L E R T
TTHEARS

213

634

1,023

420

1,570
11,044
4,141

400

Note: The above related companies and fellow subsidiaries
are either controlled by the AY Trust or a director of the
Company.

The key management personnel of the Company
are the directors of the Company. The details of the
remunerations paid to them relating to short-term
employee benefits are set out in note 10.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3H31H 1 F/Z

37. Financial Information of the Company
The financial information of the Company as at 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2018 is as follows:

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary

Amount due from a subsidiary

FRBEE

R—EHBARZRE
& Y — [ Bt /B8 & R 3R IR

37. ARAZHBEHR

AR A R2019F3H31H K 20183 A

SIHZEBBERDMT :

118,008
388,820

52,545
346,545

506,828

399,090

PAK]
188,111
14,043

223
179,781
294,405

202,367

474,409

1,129

1,500

827

930

2,629

1,757

199,738

472,652

706,566

871,742

Current assets mENE E
Other receivables H A & WK
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U — I BB A R R IE
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LR S
Current liabilities mEBE
Other payables H th & 3
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary K—HERZKBAF
1B
Net current assets MEEEFE
Capital and reserves BARRHE
Share capital &R
Reserves (Note) w1 Haz)

126
706,440

130
871,612

706,566

Note:

871,742

Ex

At 1 April 2017 H2017F4/81H 436,765 668 527,617
Profit and total comprehensive FEBMNR2EK R
income for the year k) - - 14,673
2017 final dividend paid in cash ~ 2017F K HIB 8. -
LA & - - (74,245)
2018 interim dividend paid in cash 20184 /R HRfi% 8. -
LR % - - (33,866)
At 31 March 2018 F2018%3H 318 434,179

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

F 0 A e 2 E
B

16,937

965,050
14,673
(74,245)

(33,866)
871,612

16,937

Ordinary share repurchased and B8 K& 7 84 2 i@ A%
cancelled (note 27) (K1 #t27) (72,611) (72,607)
2018 final dividend paid in cash 20184 & B fi% &, -
AR & 2+ (73,631) (73,631)
2019 interim dividend paid in cash 20194 Fh A% =
AR & 27 (35,871) (35,871)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F 3H31H 436,765 269,003 706,440
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

38. B AR
(@ HMBAT—RER
KRN A R2019F3A31H 2018
FIA3IHZ EZENB AR FHI1B

38. Particulars of Subsidiaries

(@) General information of subsidiaries
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are as

follows: (N

Acute Rise Limited

British Virgin Islands/

US$1

Investment holding

HEERAA Macau Y REER
RERTHES/ RN
Affluent Travel Services Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 60  Provision of travel
EakEERAR 36 500,000% Tt agency services
REKEDN R
Asian Glory Limited Macau MOP25,000 60  Property holding
SNEBERAR R 25,0002 710 BENE
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Macau MOP25,000 60  Provision of project
Management Limited i 25,0002 T financing services
RERGAEERBRAA RUBEARERY
Emperor Entertainment Hotel British Virgin Islands/ US$50 100 Investment holding
Investment Limited Macau 50%7C RERR
AEREREREBRAA REBRLES /AN
Grand Emperor Entertainment Macau MOP500,000 60  Provision of hotel and
REREEERM &P 500,000 T catering services
REBERERRE
Inn Hotel Macau Limited Macau MOP100,000 100 Provision of hotel and
AR B EEERAR R 100,000 7T catering services
REBERERRE
Keen Million Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 60  Hotel entertainment
Macau ES i) e
ABELES/RA
Luck United (Note (i) (A122()) ~ British Virgin Islands 1S$10,000 60  Investment holding
EERTES 10,000% 1 RARR
Qceanic Leader Investments British Virgin Islands US$1 100 Investment holding
Limited KBRS EI RAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3H31H 1 F/Z

38. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)
(@) General information of subsidiaries
(continued)

LEE

Quick Gain Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands US$1

RERAHE 1%

Right Achieve Limited British Virgin Islands US$1

ERERRA RREREAHE 1%

Tin Hou Limited Macau MOP25,000

REERAR i 25,0002 T
Notes:

(i)

Precision Faith Limited

MOP100,000

NG 2P 1000002 7T

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
acquired 15% of shareholdings in Luck United, in
aggregate, at a total consideration of HK$460,000,000,
which also included the acquisition of the shareholder’s
loan of HK$36,750,000 due and payable by Luck United to
Big Wheel Limited upon completion on 19 October 2018,
details of which had been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 8 October 2018. The difference of
HK$293,936,000 between the consideration paid for equity
interests of HK$423,250,000 and the decrease in the non-
controlling interests of HK$717,186,000 was recognised
directly in other reserve.
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38. B ARFER(E)

MEQR-REB(E)

VIP room and provision
of gaming-related
marketing and
promotion services

EEEZEBRER
BEEBATHEER
EERE

- Investment holding

60  Investment holding

RARRK

100 Provision of agency
services for gaming
operation

REBVELEBKL
P RS

HE2019F3A31BILFEE K
£ B A48 K B /460,000,000
7T W BE 7 Luck  United 2 15% A%
W BB R2018F10A
19H 5 Ak BF U2 B Luck United &%
R K% FEfFFBig Wheel Limited, 2
% B & 736,750,0008 7T - B
BEBERAREAHA2018
FI0ABHZ A EH TR - B
# X (8423,250,00058 7T 62 3F #2
Ri% 7 %5 58 L 2 717,186,000 7T
2 [ #) E5293,936,000/8 T H
BEREMEEPER -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2201934311 F/E

38. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)
(@) General information of subsidiaries

(continued)

38. MiIBATFHE(E)
(a MBLAR—RER(E)

Hiat - (&)

Notes: (continued)

(i) (continued)
In addition, the Group further acquired another 5% of
shareholdings in Luck United, in aggregate, at a total
consideration of HK$155,000,000, which also included the
acquisition of the shareholder’s loan of HK$12,250,000
due and payable by Luck United to New Mode Limited
upon completion on 25 January 2019, details of which
had been disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 27 December 2018 and its circular dated 14 March
2019. The difference of HK$103,022,000 between the
consideration paid for equity interests of HK$142,750,000
and the decrease in the non-controlling interests of
HK$245,772,000 was recognised directly in other reserve.

Upon completion of the above acquisitions, the Group
increased its shareholding in Luck United from 60% to
80%.

(i) The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. All
of these subsidiaries operate in Macau. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as
follows:

Principal place

(i)

(i)

(%)

o REBULBARE S
155,000,000/ J© i# — & U &
Luck United 2 28 9N5% & 4 + H
or B R20195E1A258 %
Bk B Luck  United 45 & & JE £~ 5
New Mode Limited 2z I& 3 & %
12,250,000/ ¢ - A BFHIBER
KATHE A2018F12H27TH 2
NEKR2019E3A148 2 8 K
#= o B % # 1 {2142,750,000
BT EEEREZR L Z
245772,0007%8 T 2 A K = B
103,022,000/ 7T E & 7 EAth &
FRER o

REMKBEETEKRE K&
& 7 Luck United 2 f& # F160%
B E80%

KEARREEZER RIS
ERUASEEXEREER T
BEREZARTMBERR - AR
AEERRIBEMINE QA
ZHBESRERANTIE -

REBRPAKR  ARRFEBEHAE
BmE T TEARNEMMBLAR -
ZEMB AR 2B ERPIEE -
ZEMBARMNEZREHM M
LU

Principal activities of business Number of subsidiaries
FTEXK FTEREH R MELARHE

2019 2018
Investment holding and others Macau 5
®E R N H A P!

None of the subsidiaries of the Company issued any
debt securities as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March
2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3H31H 1 F/Z

38. B ARFREE)

(b) BEEAFEREENIES
EME AR Z2&F#1E
TEBIEEE AEZRIERSD
KAFIER BB AT 2 B -

38. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned

subsidiaries of the Company that have material non-
controlling interests:

Luck United* British Virgin Islands

RERZEE

*

Luck United

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Representing Luck United and its subsidiaries.

70,805 114,156 cRatiER 1,886,836

* R ELuck United &2 B AR °

Luck United

Revenue
Costs, expenses, other gains and
losses

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

mENEE 3,187,848 3,494,789
EMEE E 2,274,596 2,184,456
mEBaE (362,525) (816,513)
EmEBBE (140,606) (145,641)
RAREEAEBLER
3,967,450 2,830,255
I R 2= 991,863 1,886,836
A 887,322 948,706
A X - Htilas
& Es1E (646,283) (663,315)
F 25T 241,039 285,391
FEHM2EK S
(%) 1,183 (1,390)
FE2EKREZRE
242,222 284,001
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3A31H I F/Z

38. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 38.
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests
(continued)
Luck United (continued)

Profit for the year attributable to: FEAG 2 0% A -
Owners of the Company KAREER A

B AR RS (&)
(b) BEEARFEZREZNES
BEWBELRZHE(E)

Luck United (#&)

170,234 171,235
70,805 114,156

241,039 285,391

Non-controlling interests VAR M =
Total comprehensive income EEFEE2ERE

for the year attributable to: HEE

Owners of the Company KAREEER A

Non-controlling interests AR =

174,237 170,401
67,985 113,600

242,222 284,001

Net cash from operating activities  RBE&ZEFH2HE &

179,919 175,220
(177,784) (661,930)

(222,800) (33,000)

PR
Net cash used in from investing AREEEES 2 RS
activities F EE
Net cash used in financing activities MR E/EEH IR E
SRR
Net cash outflow REMHFE

(220,665) (619,710)

39. Important Event After the Reporting Period 39.

In April 2019, the Company had repurchased its own shares
from the market in total of 7,845,000 shares at an aggregate
consideration of HK$13,367,000 (including the relevant
transaction costs and expenses of HK$35,000) with an
average price of HK$1.70 per share.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEMBHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019F3H31H1FF/Z

Results ¥i&

Revenue PN [erileRl 1498351 1,613,180 1,721,042 2,034,787
Profit before taxation B %5t Al g A <yilvil 468,868 409,854 334,028 758,557
Taxation credit (charge) BEE & () 70,823 38,862 18,796 (10,354)  (63,764)
Profit for the year FE & F kLLre 507730 428,650 323674 694,793
Profit for the year attributable to:  FE{GFE & A
Owners of the Company ARBHEBA <yPl| 393574 346,490 256,224 504,277
Non-controlling interests E e £ 70,805 114,156 82,160 67450 190,516

438,297 507,730 428,650 323,674 694,793

Assets and Liabilities EERARE

Total assets BEE SeLEREPE 6,869,560 6,827,331 6,518,420 6,373,945
Total liabilities BmaRE (reliPill (992,756) (1,348,756) (1,395,039) (1,459,614)
Jahral| 5,876,804 5478575 5123,381 4,914,331

Total equity attributable to: BTF BB
Owners of the Company AARHEAA (el 3,989,968 3,705,339 3,443,041 3,301,441
Non-controlling interests FEERER clkliel | 1,886,836 1,773,236 1,680,340 1,612,890

Jelehigl 5,876,804 5,478,675 5,123,381 4,914,331

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 32 R4EEGRA 7
Annual Report 2018/2019 3§




SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
VR E

At 31 March 2019 R20194F3H31H

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March AN & B R2019F3A3IH 2 HE M EFH 1B
2019 are as follows: /(N

Completed Investment Properties ExXHZBRENE

1. Shops of Ground Floor of the Commercial 5,520 80
Grand Emperor Hotel, Macau [EES
B P52 AR BER TE T S A
2. 8th Floor of the Grand Emperor Hotel, Macau Commercial 22,266 80
B PTR 2R R g [HES
3: 10th Floor of the Grand Emperor Hotel, Macau Commercial 22,266 80
RPIH 2 R AR [E1018 [HES
4. Portion of Ground Floor and the whole of 1st Floor Commercial 24,200 100
of the Inn Hotel Macau, Macau [SES

BFIREBE T D KB E
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